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CORPORATE VISION, MISSION & STRATEGY

Vision

* To be a Company that continuously enhances its superior technological competence
amongst the most efficient and lowest cost procedures in the industry;

¢ Through enhancing quality of life and contributing to have a healthier future, We aim to
deliver sustainable, industry - leading financial performance and earn trust;

* The company aims to produce high quality diversified finished goods at competitive
prices and to ensure a safe, melodic and challenging working environment for the
employees.

Mission

* The Company should ensure a secure & rewarding investment to the shareholders and
investors, gquality products to its customers, a secure, harmonious and friendly
environment for its employees, and be an ethical partner with its stakeholders;

* To be a leader in the market, a world-class organization by providing competitive quality
products and superior services to our customers, while learning from their high
standard-oriented feedback for our products;

¢ Improve on contemporary measures including cost, quality, service, speed of delivery
and mobilization by optimizing the long -term returns and growth of the business.

Strategy

« To be a Company that attracts and retains outstanding people by creating a fosters
openness and cultural innovations that promote individual growth and reward-oriented
performances;

« To produce a high-quality white crystalline sugar by using the highest international
standards;

e To grow our base business in sugar and build those related activities where there is
an opportunity to smooth the impact of sugar price cycles;

¢ To offer equal and fair growth opportunities to all employees;

¢ Ensure to make investments in sugarcane growers in order to have a regular supply of
profitable sugarcane, in addition to establishing a high standard of corporate sugarcane
farming;

« \We provide care through empathy, fairness, trust, and support for the community in which
we exist. We always are conscious of the impact of our activities on our surrounded
environment.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the thirty-fifth Annual General Meeting of the Sharcholders of
the Company will be held on Saturday, January 20, 2024, at 10:00 am. at Marina
Event Complex, 333-AA, Off Raiwind Road, Lahore to transact the following business:

1. To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting ofthe Company held
on |anuary 28, 2023,

Z To receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Financial Statements ol the Company
for the year ended September 30, 2023, together with the Directors” and Auditors'
Reports thereon.

(4% ]

To appoint Auditors for the year 2023-2024 and fix their remuneration. The present
Auditors M/s UHY Hassan Naeem & Co Chartered Accountants, retire and being.
eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4 To transact any other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.
Lahore: December 29, 2023. By order of the Board
Ahmad Jehanzeb Khan
Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 13-01-2024
to 20-01-2024 (both days inclusive) for entitlement, attending, and voting at
Annual General Meeting. Physical Transfers/CDS Transactions 1DS received in order
inall respects at the close of the Business on 12-01-2024 at the Company's Share
Registrar M/s Corplink [Pvt) Ltd, Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial Area Model Town
Lahore attending of the meeting,

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member
as a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behall, Forms of Proxy to be valid must be
properly fitted in/executed and received at the Registered Office of the Company at
66-L, Gulberg-1l, Lahore, at least 48 hours before the time of this meeting.

3. Members are requested to provide by mail or email, a photocopy of their CNIC and
their email address to enable the Company to comply with the relevant laws.

4. In accordance with the provision of Section 242 of the Act, it is mandatory for a
listed company to pay cash dividends to sharcholders only through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to
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receive dividends directly into the bank account, members are requested to
complete the particulars in the e-Credit Dividend Mandate Form.

Members are advised to ensure that they have provided valid Zakat declaration
under the Zakat & Usher Ordinance, 1980 (for Zakat exemption) to their respective
Participant/CDC Investor Account Services/Company’s Share Registrar.

Members holding shares in physical form are encouraged to convert their physical
shares into Book Entry Form (CDC) pursuant to the requirements of Section 72 of
the Act.

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on September
30, 2023, will also be uploaded on the Company's website.

Members are advised to promptly notify the change in their postal address, if any, to
the Company’s Share Registrar.
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

"In the name of ALLAH, the most gracious and most merciful”

It gives me immense pleasure to present this report to the Shareholders of M/s. Tandlianwala
Sugar Mills Limited about the overall perfformance of the Board and the effectiveness of its role in
attaining the company's aims and objectives.

The Company complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017 ("the Act")
and the Listed Companies (Code of Carporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“Regulations™)
concerning the composition, procedures, and meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committees. As required under Regulations, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (“the
Board") of the Company is carried out,

The company has implemented a strong governance framework supportive of effective and
prudent management of business maitters, which is regarded as instrumental in achieving the
long-term success of the company. During the year, the Board Committees continued lo work
with a great measure of proficiency. The Board as a whole has reviewed the Annual Report and
Financial Statements and is pleased to confirm that in its view the report and financial statements,
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced, and understandable.

The Board reviews its effectiveness and performance each year on a self-assessment basis. The
Board Performance assessment for the year was based on an evaluation of the integral
components i.e. Strategic Planning, Board Composition, Board Committees, Board Procedures,
Board Interactions, Board and CEOQ’s Compensation, Board Information, and Board & CEO's
Effectiveness.

| believe that the strategic direction of the organization for the long term is clear and appropriate,
Further, the process adopted in developing and reviewing the overall corporate strategy and
achievement of the organization's objectives are commendable which are truly reflected by the
current financial results and performance of the organization.

The Board of Directors of the company received agendas and supporting written material
including follow-up matenals in sufficient time before the Board and its Committee meetings. The
Board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The Non-Executive
and Independent Directors are equally involved in important decisions. The Board has effectively
set the tone at the top, by putting in place a transparent and vigorous system of governance.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the board of the company,
shareholders, bankers, financial institutions, our valued customers, and suppliers for their support
and assistance and workforce for their hard work, enthusiasm, and contribution made to the
company in this challenging year of the change. We look forward to the executive and other
employees of the company for their continued support and dedication to getting the same

operations in the future.

Ghazi Khan
Chairman
December 29, 2023
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DIRECTOR’'S REFORT

Dear Shareholders,

“In the name of ALLAH, the most gracious and most merciful”

On behalf of The Board of Directors of the TSML Group, | am pleased to present the Company’s
35th Annual Statutory Report, together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
30th September 2023.

Operating and Financial Highlights:

The Punjab and KPK Governments increased the minimum support price from the previous year
and notified a new price of Rs. 300/ per 40kg. Such a significant increase appeared beneficial for
growers as the higher cane prices should have allowed the farmers to earn a handsome return on
their crop. However, despite the higher crop expectations, sugarcane harvesting remained slow
in the initial period as growers expected, as always, much higher prices than the support price
affixed. Due to a drought earlier in 2022, the yields of the sugarcane crop had dramatically

declined. This prompted an unusual and abnormal increase in sugarcane prices.

The era of making prompt payments to growers has become a regular feature in the sugar sector,
which necessitates the requirement of huge liguidity. However, the banks are generally unable to
provide working capital to mills as required. The astronomical increase in markup rates made our
financial cost jump substantially and, as such, a corresponding increase in the overall cost of sugar

production.

The financial cost has significantly increased in both our sugar division and ethanol division after
banks significantly cut down Export Refinance limits and the ones that were left had brought the
ERF interest close to the policy rate, hence the advantage of export refinancing is all but gone. On
top of this, all other components in the cost of production also jumped up substantially due to a

very high and consistent inflation in the country.

The government allowed the export of sugar, though belatedly, permitting the industry to export
250,000 tons, until the end of June 2023, which was aimed at attracting US dollars to improve

foreign exchange reserves.

TSML manufactures sugar as well as producing ethanol. We produce ethanol from our C molasses,
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while worldwide ethanol is produced from C molasses, B molasses, as well as, from clarified cane
juice. In Pakistan ethanol has always been made from C molasses. We decided this season to
become substantially indigenous in molasses production and ventured to produce ethanol from
our B molasses also, so the average combined sugar recovery for the season of the company
became slightly less, comparatively. This change in methodology contributed very positively and
was much beneficial for the overall ethanol production, with far less dependence on outside

molasses with bad quality.

The season 2022-23 crushing was better as compared to the corresponding previous year and the
company also managed to crush more sugarcane as compared to last season due to a better
management decision to crush aggressively, in order to obtain more indigenous molasses for our

distillery division, being a more viable option, as expressed earlier.

The year under consideration was full of economic and political challenges. The Government
denied further permission for the export of surplus sugar, leading to missed opportunities for the

country to earn precious foreign exchange in the most crucial economic time of Pakistan.

The finance cost of the company ballooned to Rs. 2.5 billion compared to the previous year's Rs.

1.7 billion for the reasons stated above.

Allied Division:

The Ethanol Division of the Company continues to contribute every year. With huge exports this
year also, we were again declared as one of the largest exporters of ethanol from Pakistan, both

in bulk & 150 mode contracts.

Our ENA product, as per years old reputation is a declared premium product in the international

market and appreciably earned good profits for the company.

In liaison with the Ethanol Division, our Top Gas (CO2) segment remains a true alliance in the

company's operations, as always.

Season 2023-24 and Future Outlook:

In the current financial year 2023-24, the sugarcane crushing season commenced late in
November 2023. The mills have crushed more sugarcane and also proeduced more sugar to date,

in comparison to the same number of days of the under-review period.

The ongoing crushing season, 2023-24 envisages a further rise in earnings attributable to
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increased sugar & ethanol volumes and prices.

The management is very hopeful that the company will increase its production & revenue targets

and will perform much better in the current year in both the sugar & ethanol divisions.

The management of TSML Group during the years 2024-25 shall Insha Allah be adding the fourth
division, under the umbrella of the Company i.e. the Steel Mills division. The steel mills will be
composed of 24 tons capacity furnace, 120T high-pressure boiler with a turbine having a capacity
of 25MW. The steel mill is expected to be commercially operational during the year 2024 and will
be based on indigenous bagasse as fuel for the fumace & boiler. The saving in fuel cost shall
reduce the cost of production of steel substantially. The steel mills will produce billets and re-

rolling bars.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework:

The Directors are pleased to state that the Company is in compliance with the provisions of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG) as reguired by the

Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
Following are the statements on the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework;

= The financial statements present fairly the state of affairs of the Company, the results of

its operations, cash flow, and changes in equity;

« Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained;

« Accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements have been
consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates

are based on reasonable prudent judgment;

» [International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in the preparation of the

financial statements;

= The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented

and monitored;

« There are no doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;
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+ There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as

detailed in the listing regulations
= A statement regarding key financial data for the last six years is annexed to this report;

= Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements;

= There is no likelihood of any delayed payments or default in respect of all loans availed by

the Company;

=  During the year 05 Board meetings were held. The minutes of the meetings were

appropriately recorded and circulated Attendance was as under:

. Board Audit Committee
Name of Directors
Attended | Required | Attended | Re quired
MNON — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ghazi Khan 5 5 5 _ 5
Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik 5 5 5 | 5
iMrs. Rasheeda Begum 5 5
|Mr_=.. Mobina Akbar Khan 5 5
Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan 5 5 5 5
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Akbar Khan 5 5
!Mr. Haroon Khan

Six Years Review at a Glance

The six-year review at a glance is annexed.

Pattern of Shareholdings

The pattern of shareholdings as of September 30, 2023, which is required to be disclosed under
the reporting framework is annexed herewith in this report.

Audit Committee

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of three members including the
Chairman of the Committee. The Committee regularly meets per requirements of the code. The
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Committee assists the Board in reviewing the internal audit manual and internal audit system.

Human Resource Committee

The Board has constituted a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee in compliance with
the Code of Corporate Governance. The Human Resource Committee is performing its duties in
line with its terms of reference as determined by the Board of Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Board has constituted a Nomination Committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate

GCovernance.

Risk Management Committee

The Board has constituted a Risk Management Committee in compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance.

Board Meetings

There have been 5 meetings during the year and the attendance of each director is stated above:

Trading in Shares

Trading in shares by Directors, CEOQ, CFO, Company Secretary, and their spouses and minor
children has been disclosed in FORM 34 annexed to this annual report.

Outstanding Statutory Dues

Details of outstanding dues towards minimum tax and those relating to other statutory
obligations are set out in notes 16 and 32 respectively.

Dividend
No dividend is being recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ending September 30,
2023.

Staff Retirement Benefits

The company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all employees with a qualifying service
period of six months.

Auditors

The retiring Auditors, M/s UHY Hassan Naeem & Co, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offer
themselves for appointment for the Statutory External Audit of the year ending September 30,
2024.
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Appreciation

The Board acknowledges the continued dedication and efforts of the employees of the Company.

We also acknowledge the contribution of our growers as they hold key elements of our industry
and we thank them for their continued cooperation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Akbar Khan
(Chief Executive Officer)
December 29, 2023
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SIX YEARS REVIEW AT A GLANCE

Figures in "000
oz 022 frid | o 2019 18
{Rupees) {Rupees) {Hupoes) (Hupeesy {Rupees) {Rupees)
FINANCIAL RESULTS
Sales (Mel) 42 290,047 32 2909 945 27,014 404 21271 B¥5 27 295 875 17,522 464
Cost of Sakes 6617 314 24,556 941 21 9495 409 19 4350 945 23 142 764 14,665 516
Ciross prafit 5,672,773 3,763,024 3,118,995 1,840,940 4,153,106 2,856,948
Operaimg, fimancial and
olher expenses 3,681, 7TTH 2, T4 665 2123 154 1,927 T30 2437 413 FRUER I ]
1,990,995 IHE,IF0 995,136 (86,79} 1,715,693 ¥25,074
Uther income ZET41 9347 BT507 @7 7350 65,485 ™9
Net profit before wppl 2,274,036 1,057,706 1,082,643 10,940 1781178 4,507
Warkers” profit parbeipation fund 125,946 69,218 49,404 0.547 10979 55506
et profil before Taxslion L 149,050 SN AN 035239 JLR R R IR B4.211
Provision for teeation (H39_8TI) (4T0.77T) (320,993) {292 _fidy) {234 276) (41 566)
Nel profit afler taxation 1,509,217 517,711 712,246 (281.726) 1445923 H7.645
Cash dividend E = = = = =
Earning per share (K. 1282 4.40 6.05 239y 1294 686
Auihorized capital 1. 200, (0 1, 20M3 000 1 20N (M3 1, 2000 (MWD [N 1 2000 00
Faid-up capital 1,177, (3 1177063 1177063 L7063 LETT a3 1. 177,063
Fixed capital expenditures {Ned) 14,5971 6 54 15,330,104 15 K80 401 16 114373 16, 100,857 15683153
OPERATING RESULTS
Supgar prodocton - Lmi - | M. Tons Qi 290 07 062 95,118 TI 182 64,115 5T R
Supgar producton - Umi - 2 M. Tons 130,516 ISR B1.67T9 e E11 15,5249 93,139
Supar production - Unit - 3 M. Tons 112548 154 643 139 472 119,427 B0, 731 St 617
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company

| TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED |

FORM 34

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 30-09-2023 |
—-—-Shareholdings-—-—

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
161 1 100 4,728

418 101 500 193,094

68 501 1,000 56,646

60 1,001 5,000 131,638

7 5,001 10,000 48,154

8 10,001 15,000 105,681

4 15,001 20,000 69,107

1 20,001 25,000 21,500

1 140,001 145,000 144,300

1 550,001 555,000 552,500

2 1,390,001 1,395,000 13,400,626

1 1,395,001 1,400,000 1,395,343

1 1,400,001 1,405,000 1,401,747

1 3,290,001 3,295,000 3,294,155

1 5,455,001 5,460,000 5,459,419

1 7,635,001 7,640,000 7,639,578

1 20,195,001 20,200,000 20,197,535

1 20,250,001 20,255,000 20,253,274

1 21,575,001 21,580,000 21,575,857

1 21,760,001 21,765,000 21,761,418

740 117,706,300

2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 99,991,922 84.9504%

and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies,
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
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2.3.3 Banks Development 181,489 0.1542%
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.4 Shareholders holding 10% 99,989,900 84.9486%
or more

2.3.5 General Public
a. Local 17,532,889 14.8955%

2.3.6 Others (to be specified)
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on September 30, 2023

No. of
Sr. No. Name Shares Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) = -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 MR. AKBAR KHAN 32203418  27.3591%
2 MR. HAROON KHAN 23,163,165 19.6788%
3 MR. GHAZI KHAN 22,975,300 19.5192%
4 MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM 21,648,017 18.3916%
5 MRS. MOBINA AKBAR KHAN 1,000 0.0008%
6 MRE. HUMAYUN AKHTAR KHAN 522 0.0004%
7 MR. TAHIR FAROOQ MALIK 500 0.0004%
Executives: -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: =
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 181,489 0.1542%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

5. No. Name

MR. AKBAR KHAN

MR. HAROON KHAN

MR. GHAZ] KHAN

MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM

MR. HAMEED ULLAH KHAN PARACHA

N o L P =

Holding
32,203 418
23,163,165
22,975,300
21,648,017

7,639,578

Percentage
27.3591%
19.6788%
19.5192%
18.3916%

6.4904%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their

spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No NAME
1 MR. AKBAR KHAN

SALE

PURCHASE
10,610,937
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Mame of Company: Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited

Year Ended: 30 September 2023

The statement is presented in compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Govermnance) Regulations, 2019 (herein referred to as “The Regulations™) providing a
framework for corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following

manner:
1. The total number of Directors are seven (07) as per the following:
a) Male: 05
b) Female: o2
2. The composition of the Board is as under:
Category MNames

Executive Directors:

Mr. Akbar Khan
Mr. Haroon Khan

MNon-Executive Directors:

Male:

M. Ghazi Khan

Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan
Female:

Mrs. Rasheeda Begum
Mrs. Mobina Akbar Khan

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company;

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and
significant policies for the company. The Board has ensured that a complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,
by a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
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1.

12.

13.

14.

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording, and
circulating minutes of the meeting of the Board;

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the
remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

All the Directors on the Board are well conversant with their responsibilities as
Directors of corporate bodies as the Company had arranged a briefing for its Directors
to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities. All the Directors of the Company
are exempt from obtaining certification under Directors’ training programs (DTP) per
criteria i-e 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the board of a listed
company.

The Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment, and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations. However, no new appointment was made during the year.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed an audit commitiee. It comprises of the following 03 (Three)
Directors :

Name Designation

Mr Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairman / Member
Mr. Ghazi Khan Member

M. Tahir Faroog Malik Member

The Board has formed a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. It
comprises of the following 03 (Three) Directors:

Name Designation

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairman / Member
Mrs. Rasheeda Begum Member

Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik Member

The Board has not constituted a separate "Nomination Committee” and “Risk
Management Committee” as the responsibilities of these committees are being taken
care of at the Board level when reguired. Therefore, a need for the separate formation
of these committees does not exist.

The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented,
and advised to the commitiees for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the commitiees were as
follows:

a) Audit Committee: 05 meetings held during the year ended on September 30,
2023
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b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 01 meetings held during the year ended
on September 30, 2023.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal
audit function to those who are considered suitably gqualified and experienced
professionals for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of
the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed, that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan ("ICAP") and registered with the Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the pariners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations, or any
other regulatory requirement, and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 6. 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the
regulations have been complied with; except the following:

a) The Company did not have any Independent Director during the year ended 30
September 2023 as per the requirement of clause (1) of
Section 6 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

b} Mone of the members (including the Chairman) of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director as per sub-clause (i)&(ii) of clause 1 of Section 27 of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

c) Mone of the members of the Human Resource & Remuneration Commiitee is
an Independent Director as per Section 28(1) & (2) of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

d) The CFO of the Company also holds the position of Company Secretary.

On Behalf of the Board

Ghazi Khan
Lahore: December 29, 2023 CHAIEMAN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended
September 30, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it
does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended September 30, 2023.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reterence where it is stated in the Statement of
Compliance:
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Paragraph reference

i) Paragraph 17 (a)

it) Paragraph 17 (b)

fii) Paragrapl 17 (c)

fv) Paragraph 17 (d)

Place: Lahore
Date: December 29, 2023

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Description

At present there is no independent divector on the Company's
Board of Directors as required under the clause (1) of Section 6 of
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

Under the sub-clause (i & ii) of clause 1 of Section 27 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the
Audit Conumittee shall have at least one independent divector who
shall preferably be the chairman of the committee. Since, there is no
Independent Director om the Board, this requirement is not
complied with.

Under the clawse 1 of Section 28 of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Human Resource
and Remuneration Committee shall have at least one independent
director. Since, there is no Independent Director on the Board, this
requirement is not complied with.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company also holds the position
of Company Secretary.

UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: CR2023103000owdeEjq9G {Mr. Ibne Hassan)
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2023, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2023 and
of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash Hows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Anditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1

Revenue recognition

Refer to the statement of profit or loss and
note 412 and 25 to the financial

statements,

The Company generates revenue from
sale of sugar and its by-products to both
local and export customers.

We identified recognition of revenue as a
kev audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an inherent
risk of misstatement to meet expectations

or largets,

Or audit procedures to assess recognition of :

sales, amongst others, included the following:

* Obtained an understanding of the process
relating to recording of revenue.

e assessed the appropriateness of the
Company’'s  accounting policies  for
reveniue recognition and compliance of |
those policies with applicable accounting
standards;

= compared, on a sample basis, specific
revenue lransacltions recorded just before
and just after the financial year end date to
determine whether the revenue had been
recognized in the appropriate financial
period;

e performed scanning analytics to identify
any manual journal entries relating to sales
during the year which were considered to
be material or met other specific risk-based
criteria  for  inspecting  underlying
documentation:

» performed test of details over a sample of |
revenue transactions recorded during the
yvear with sale orders, sales invoices,
delivery Challan and other relevant
undertaking documents;

o reconciled the sales recorded and sales kax
paid thereto with the amounts reported in
sales tax returns; and

s assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
financial statements with respect to
revenue,
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Eefer notes 4.7 and 21 lo the linancial
statements,

The stock-in-trade balances constitutes
16.66% of total assets of the Company. The
cost of finished goods is determined at
cost

including of proportions of

production overheads;

The Company’s palicy is to value stock-in-
trade at lower of cost and net realizable

value, The stock-in-trade valuation

5r. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
2 Borrowings and finance cost Our audit  procedures, amongst  others,
included the following:
Refer notes 4,16, 8, 9, 12, 13 and 30 to the
tinancial statements, = assessed  the intermal controls  over
recording the terms and conditioms of
The Company has obtained a range of borrowings from financial institutions,
financing facililies from various financial including their classification as other
institutions with varying terms and tenure current or non-current and associated cost;
against collaterals of stocks and plant & | 4 shiained confirmations of borrowings as at
machinery. September 30, 2023 directly from the
. ) financial institutions;
Further, compliance with debt covenants » re-calculated the mark-up recognized as
is a key requirement of these financing : ! }
expense during the year to assess whether
ATEANEHERIS. these were accounted for in accordance
with approved accounting standard as
applicable in Pakistan;

s auzesgsed whether installments of |
loans/leases due or loans/leases maturing
within twelve months were classified as
current liabilities; and

s performed  substantive  procedures Lo
verify the mark-up and principal |
repavment during the year; and

e assessed the adequacy of Company's
compliance with loan covenants and
disclosures in financial statements.,

3 Existence and valuation of stock-in-trade | Our audit  procedures, amongst others, '

included the following;:

the
of Company’s

*  assessed appr:)priiltﬂ‘ﬂ{'&ﬁ &

consistency accounting
policy for valuation of stock-in-trade and

the policy with the

requirements of the prevailing accounting

compliance of

standards;
= obtained an understanding of internal
controls over valuation of stock-in-trade
and performed lest of contral on a sample
basis, to test their operating effectiveness;
e performed substantive procedures over

purchases and consumptions;
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Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit |
involves management judgement in |e re-calculated the value of stock-in-trade by |
determining the appropriate costing basis. allocating the fixed and variable overheads

and reviewed the adequacy of costing
Additionally, entity holds its stock-in- methodology;
trade as a collateral against the financing | 4 performed  cut-off  procedures  and
on account of which there is persistent subsequent stock count to validate the
nherent risk. completeness and existence of closing
o stock;
Thus, on account of the significance of ) ) .

s assessed reasonableness of management's

stock-in-trade,  complexity in  re- o ;

—— il ; o determination of net realizable walue
calculabion and mvolvement of significant (NRV) and the key estimates adopted and
management judgement/estimation in ) . )

g G, ' kil compared, on sample basis, the cost of
application of the costing methodology; stock-in-trade with their respective net

; sider this tobe a k dit ; ;

W panslcier tils to.be a-key audit matier realizable values (NRV);

* assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to be in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards. |

4 Deferred Tax Our audit procedures, amongst others, '
Refer to note 10.2 to the Financial | included the following:
Statements.

A deferred tax asset shall be recognized on
the amount of tax losses, if any, along with
the requirements of A5 12, However,
such recognition involves management
judgement regarding estimation of future
profits of the Company.

As at September 30, 2023, the Company
estimated that the unused
should not be recognized as sufficient

tax losses
taxable profits are not expected against
which the Company can use benefits
theretrom. Management is of the view
that recognition of deferred tax asset shall
be re-assessed on September 30, 2024,

obtained computation of current tax and

reconciled the amounts with relevant tax

correspondence and underlying
accounting records;

re-calculated  the deferred tax and
evaluated the same in accordance with the
Income  Tax  Ordinance, 2001  and
International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS);

obtained the financial projections from
management as approved by the Board of |
Directors and reviewed management's
estimates and assumptions in support of |
the projections for rationality and
achievability; and

assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to be in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the vear ended September 30, 2023, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such intermal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible tor assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, diﬁclnsing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accoumting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audilor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from traud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain protessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of nternal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,

+ FEwvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulure events or condilions may cause the
Company to cease lo continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
muost significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit malters. We describe these mallers in ow audilor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reascnably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a} proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance 1980 (XVIII of 198()

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Tbne Hassan.

Place: Lahore UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Date: December 29, 2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: AR202310300ghQOKiXYq
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Statement of Financial Position

As at September 30, 2023

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES MWente 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
\uthorzed share capital
1 20,000,000 {September 2022; 120,000,000} ordinary shares of 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000
Rs 10 each
Issued, subscribed and p:licl-ul'l share :::Jp:m] ¥ 1,177, 063,000 1,177.063,000
Share preminm & 200,741,640 290,741,640
Un-appropriated profics 7,495,117,955 53,963,048,710
Loan from sponsors - amiered 7 3635214057 3,635,214057
TOTAL EQUITY 12,598,136,652 11,066,067 ,407
LIABILITIES
NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finances - recwed & 303,520,554
Lease liabiliry o 314,238,148 2,412 260
Dieterred liabilites 1 BHEG,2EH,209 776,438,046
Deferred income - Government grant 1 -
1,200,526,357 1,172,379,860

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings - seaered 12 BA33 218407 0,907,040,575
Current portion of non-carrent liabilities 13 761,092 236 1,307 230,534
Trade and other payables 14 B,6064,033,363 T7,457,575,122
Mark-up accrued 15 359291779 431,127,753
Provision for taxation ia TO0.976,460 467,065,454

17,008,612,245 19,660,039,438
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 30,807,275,254 31,898,486,705

The annexed notes | to 44 form an integral part of these financial sratements

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive
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) 2023 2022
ASSETS MNoge
Rupees Rupees
MNON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment & 14,972450,176 15,385,6003,599
Long term deposits e 269,409,122 154,606,251
15,261,859,298 15,540,209,850
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose torols 20 1,735 372 446 1,282 8150087
Stock-in-trade 27 5,131 402 400 7,950 386,723
Trade debes - comsdered good 22 3843118 18,486,272
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 23 0,873,082.982 5,798,251.593
Tax refunds due from Government 701,721,744 654,559 825
Cash and bank balances 24 1,009,992 857 644,777,345
15,545,415,956 16,358,276,855
TOTAL ASSETS 30,807,275,254 31,898,4586,705
Director
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the vear ended September 30, 2023

Sales -net

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Distribution expenses
Other incoime

Profit from operations
Finance cost

Other expenscs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Cludel Frivpngial Oifecer

Chicef Excoutive

3

2023
Rupﬂ'.l;

42,200,087 513

(30,617 314, 126)

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2022

Hupeeﬁ
32,299 965,782

(28,536,041 441)

5,672,773,387
(T36,008,233)
(485,264,526

2RT 41015

5,763,024,341
(63,720,551)
(413,833,042

(9,346,782

4,736,541,643 2,734,811,200
(2458 304, 826) (1,677,105,.219)
(128,946,521) (69,217,639)
2,149,090,296 088,488,342
(639,873,270 (470,776, 805)
1,509,217,017 517,711,537
1282 440
[Hegecior
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2023

23 222
Maote Rupeces Rupces

Profit after taxation 1,50%,217,017 517,711,537
Orther comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gain/ {loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit liabiliey 10.1.2 29,267,035 (16,932,735
Related tax impact {6,414, 807) 3,711,351

22,852,228 (13,221,384)
Total coanprehensive income for the year 1,532,069,245 504,490,153
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Chief Financial Cficer Chiel Executive Dirccior
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2023

Prosfit betore tazation

Adinrineents far nog-cash aud ol e

Depreciation on properry, plane and equipment
Crain on digpsesal ¢ i property, plant and equipiment
Finance cost

Prowision for seatf renrement benetits

Profir on saving accounrs

Crrant income

Wiorkers' Profit Partcipaton Fund

Operating profit before working capital changes
Twerea re) J aErrREEr ar enerenyl gerefns

Stores, spare pares and loose tools

stock-1n-trade

Advances, deposies, prepayments amnd other receivalles
Trade debts - cowridera grod

Tuicrease [ fdecrease) i onrrent Sabilities:
Trade and other payalbles
Met Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Staff revrerment benefic paid

Taxes paid

Workers' Profit Paricipation Fund paid

Met cash gl:rlr:rutcd froom upurating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

[neome receved from bank deposits

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Long term finance paid - se

Lease habilines - met

5‘;|||:-r1 term b :-wil'lp.* wef

Met cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Mot

1811
1812
i
thyi
29
i
1.2

1572

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yvear

4

The annexed notes 1o 44 form an integral pare of these financial statements

Chicl Financial Officer

Chief Executive

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 2022
Rupees Bupees
Z,149,0K0, 2% URE, 488,342

TOU U HES 211,550 562

(8,515,804,
2458504 826
144 105,056

(93,083)
1,677,105,.219
112,223,647

(33,395,263) (3,956,230
(822,248 (10,459,335
113,110,016 56,355,112
3,468,088,448 2,642,725 892
5,617,178,744 3,631,214.234
(452,557,349 [158,162,9173)
2827 943914 (1,698 442 ToH)
(174,831 589 (2,11 B03,6435)
14,043,154 (4,242,556)
1,315,238,330 {4,170,651,880)
(850,206,663) 3,448, 6406,175
6,082,120,411 2,909,208,529
(2,330, 3440, 5000 (1, 473,202,194
{4,987 338) %,960,48Y)
(459,538,999 (586,917,558)
(50,355,112) (50,0006, 904
(3,050,222,749) (2, 120,093,150)
3,025,897 662 T8Y,115,37%

(A GT2 599

[257,335,562)

A56G,300,741 126,558
(134802871 20,047,578
33,395 263 3,956,230
(54,779,466) (233,205, 186)
IZ'HHE.445,]‘-|5_:I -:'_]J:'.:i':':l,"-l 1337 5
-:[5.‘1,(;.‘15,.12 |J ::]‘J-I-._'J.'!l'f,.'!l-‘l.'_:lj
{1,563,822,168) 1,238971,3%%
(2,605,902,684) (12,881,327)
365,215,512 543,028,866
545,275,190 2,246,324
910,490,702 545,275,190
Dhirictor
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2023

21

.2

13

14

241

242

4.3

Corporate and general information

Reporting enticy

Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakisran on Moevember U1, 1988 as a Public Limited Company. The
ares of the Company are quoted on Pakisan Swock Exchange, The principal actvity of the Company is production and sale of white

-;;r!.':iru."irw SLZHT, ethaned and uther related albed |_1:\.' |11'|u.]||r_'|_~.
li |1{' gl,'l -gnip]1ic.|: 'III';:ITiII‘I'IH '|I1|;1 .vCll,Il;i.I'lL'}.H"ﬂ IIF ||1{' l:.\l_xII'I'I]:I.II'I:,'I"G I}In.S.iH{"i'\" unis, i-_v{'illl,|1|1g P‘Tla‘hlclil mn 'r.il_'1|1|il;"\1' are as III'IIL‘II,'T:
Head office and regstered office : 66-L, Gulberg -11, Lahore
- Unir-1 : Kanpwami, Tehsil Tandbanwala, [iserice Paisalabad
- Unie-IT : Zamand, Miran, Indus High
I.-Ilil EI.I L RI.'I“ILJII I].I.il'il.\, H‘.I'I:I]:III:IIIIJI R}:':I':], !j:.'\\'rll."‘ .\-[Uﬁ:IF:-.Lrg_'ar.h

L Districs Diera Ismail Khan

Basis of prepacation

St:m;l:lu..lll of (&

TI‘IE‘HF '.:."I'.I.I'I':'i'.ll staterments ]'lil'l'l‘ I'H"rl'l ]':r\e'pun'd i:l. :I('nlﬂq:l'l'll.'r' 'J.':rh rhr’ :4.1'!:'4|l.||1ri|1!_3 '.l.rll:l r'."F‘:'J'ril'l!_z Kr:ll'll'lJ.ﬂ]h us :IPP‘Ii('iIl)Ir’ i'l:l ll‘illl:iﬁrlll'l. T‘I'Ir'
accouning and reportng standards applicable in Pakistan comprise af:
Internasonal Financial Reportng Standards (IFRS) issued by the Internasonal Accountng Standards Board {JASE) as noofied under
the Companies Act, 20017,
- Islamic Finanecial Accounting Standards (IFAS) ssuved by the Insttore of Chartered Accountams of Pakistan as aotfied under the

f.r'-|11par|i|.-:_= Act, 0107; and

- Prowision of and dire
Where provisions of and dirccoves 1ssued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFPRS or IFAS, the provisicn of and directves issued
under the Companies Act, 20017 have been followed.

ctives izsued under the Companies Act, 2017

Func al and presentation currency
These financral statements are presented n Pakistan Rupees (PKR), which 1= the Compamny's funcuonal currency, All financal information

presented in Rupecs has been rounded of T to the nearcst of Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Basizs of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cose convension unless otheraise sm ted.
Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved sceounting standards sequires management o make judgements,
estimares and fl.‘-hu:!'L|:IE5|II:I"..‘- thar affect the 1|:|E:l|:.|'.ilil.-|'| ol |Ilufjt\ and r|."|:|l:.-r||.'al amounts af Asgets, |i.ﬁ|.'.hi|ili.-|.'r-, ingode and expenies The
estimares and associated assumpoons are based on historical expenence and varous other factars that are believed o be reasonable under
circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgement about the carrying value of assets and bababioes thar are not
rezdily apparent from other sources. Acroal results may differ from these estmares.

g bazis. Rew

The estmates and underdying assumprions age reviewed on an ong
which estimates ase vevised if dve revision affects only thae pedod, or in the petiod of the revision asd fooee pettods iF the revision affects

WS T ACCOURTNE cstimares are recopnized in the period in

buth current and future penods

The argas where assumptions and estimates are significant 1o the Company’s financial statements or whers judgement was exercised in the
applicaticn of accounting policies are as follons:

Employees' reticement benefits and other obligations

The Company operates an approved unfunded gratuty scheme covering all permanent workers whoe have completsd the minimum qualifving
period of service as defined under the respective scheme, The caleulaion of the benefic requises sssumprions o be made of furure outcomes,
the |:|1'i:|:||::i|:|d.| OrbE] ]:ll.'jl'L:.__'; in s pect of an incfesse in vemunerition and the discount fate used o convert Fooere cash Oows o curent valoes,
The assumpmns wsed for the plan are derermined by an independent actuary on annual basis,

Taxation

ri.l'lf‘ :’:I.)I'I'lrﬁﬂ.rl:l.' r:ll:'."ﬁ -=||1":I adoaurt ?]1[‘ I'ITI"'.':I'iI'irIg !I'II.TIITII.'! T:l.x I.ﬂ'u'l.' .l.lll:l rhf‘ I::.-l‘l-iﬁiilrl.'\- rilkrﬂll ]'|'| .\I.Prll."llﬂrl." .".I.Irh“Ti'ﬂ‘l‘H. l'I.l'l. Ill."ﬁ.". at r:.':r' ALLELLITIEnt
stage, the taxation authonoes have adopted a different tax treacment and the Company considers that the most bkely outcome wall be in faver
of the Company, te amounrs are shown as contngenr labilides

Provisions and contingencics

The Company reviews the status of all pending linigaions and claims against the Company. In making a judgement and / or estimare relating

1o probabiicy of ouceme, the management considers laws, stamory rules, sepulatons and the advice of the kegal advisors for the esamared

financial outcome and where, based on management™ estmate, a provision is reguired, the same i5 recorded dn the financial statemenss, The
actal outeome of these lidgadons and clazms can affect the carrying amounts of the lizbilides recognized ar the smrement of Anancal pesinon

dare,
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2.4.4 Estimated nseful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the vsetul [rves and ressdual values of property, plant and equipment on regular basis, Any change in estimates in future
years might atfect the carrving amounts of the respective stems of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the
|_|l_'|}ru:‘i_ill-:|n :"||f'| 5

24.5 Invemiories

The Company revicws the invenrngics for possihle imparment on an annual basis, Any change in csdmares i fumre years might affect the

carrying amounts of the respective items of inventories with a corresponding effece on the provisaon,

24.6 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) / loss allowances against trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables

31

41

ECLs are hased on the difference berween the contracmal cash flows due in accerdance with the contrace and all the cash flows thar the
Company expects o recerve. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation @0 the assed's nnginal effectve interest rare.

The Company has decred o measuee loss allooances or eade debes other than eefunds due from *Goveramene of Pakistan” using [FRS 9
simplificd approach and has caloulated ECLs based on Bifetime ECLs, The financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan continues o
b measored under TAS-3% due 10 the exemption given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SR.O0 985 (1720019
dated 02 Seprember 2019, The Company has established 2 provision matmy dhar is based on the Company’s histerical credit loss expericnee,
adjusted for forward-l wking Factors specific o the debtors and the economic environment, When determining whether the credir risk of 2
financial asset has increased significantly since inial recogniton and when estimanng BECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and avaslable without undwe cose or effore, This includes both gquantitative and qualitative information
and amalysis, based on the Companys hustoncal expenence and informed credit assessment i1‘.||']|.||.|||1g f\.ll:"l'l'df-:‘l-Jll'..lkifl!_-: informaniomn,

The mazimum period considered when estimating ECLs s the masimum contractual peried over swhich the Company is exposed to credit sk,
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amorized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assers,

The Company reviews the recoverabilicy of s trade delbus, deposits, advances and other recervables o assess amount of koss allooances
required there against on an anouwal basis,

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The aceounting policies and the methieds of computation adopted in the preparation of these financial stagements are game as those applied in
the preparatinn of the financial starements for the year ended September 30, 2022 except for the adepion of new standands effective as of
Cherrsher 01, 2022 as stated below in 3.1,

Change in significant accounting policy

IFR5 16 replaces the previous lease standaed 1A5 17 Leases It resulred in almose all leases being recoprized in the starement of financial
position, as the distinetion between aperating and finance leases have now been eliminated for the Lessee, Under the new standard, an asset
and 4 lease liabilioy wo pay rentals are required o be recognized. The only exceptions are short term and o value leases,

Impact of Adoption

The Company bas adopeed 1IFRS 16 and it has no maverial impact on the Company's fnancial positon as previously recopnized leases were
already classified under finance lease arrangemenes.,

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as nogfied under the Companies Act, 2007 and the amendments and

interpretations there o will be effective for accounting perods beginning on or after 01 January 2024;

Standards or Interpretation "Effective date
1Aa%-1 - Amendments w LAS T "Mon-currene Liahilines with Covenanis” January 1, 2024
TAS-T & TFRS-T - Amendments to TAS 7 & IFRS 7 "Supplier Finance Ammangements” Janwary 1, 2034
1FRs-10 - Amendments to ITFRS 15 "Lease hability in a Sale & Leaseback agreement™ January 1, 2024

Significant accounting policies

The sigmfwant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied oo all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an un-funded gramity scheme covenng all elighle emplovees completing the minimum qualifving period of service as
specified by the scheme. Annual provision is made on the basis of sceanal valoaten o cover obligatens under the scheme for all employees
elignhle ro reatury henefins TESpECHvE nf the qualifying period, The projected anit credic method used foor the valuanon of the scheme 15 hased
i assumpoions stated in oooe 10,1

Past-service oosts are recngnized immediaely in profic and Inss acorun unless the changes oo the plan are eondinonal on the emplovees
rernaining in secvice for 4 specified period of ame (the vesang period). In this case, the pase service costs are amortized on a stoaight-line basis
over the vestung perod,
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The l;,'l:-|'|'||'.h3r'|!."s. ohlipation in respect of the defined benefit plan is ealeulared by estimaring the amoumnt ol Future benefit that emplovess have
earned in the current and prior penods, discounting that ameunt. The caloulation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a
qualified actuary using the projecred unit eredic method.

Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial g,,:iﬂx and losses, is 'rl.?;l:-gl'li{u,l immediately in other comprehensive
income. The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefic lability for the pedod by applving the discount mte used o
measure the defined henetir nhlipation ar the heginning of the annual perind e the defined benefir liabalicy, mking into acoount any changes in
the net defined benetir labilicy during the penod as o result of benebit payments, Interest expense and other expenses relared to the defined

benefit plan are recognized in profic and koss account,
Taxation

[meome tax expense comprises curtent and deferred tax, It is recognized in profit or loss account except to the extent that it relates 1w items
recogmized dircctly in other comprehensive ingome, in which case it 18 recognized in equin.

Current tax

Prowision of current tax is based on the raxable income for the year determined in sccordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income,
The charpe for current tax is caloulared wsing prevailing tax gares nr mx raes expected w apply to the profic for the vear if enacred atter taking
inter geeoumnt tax credies, rebates and exemptions, if any, The charge for current tax alse includes adjustments, where o

sichered pecessary,
provisien for rax made in the previous years ansng from assessments framed dunng the vear for such years. Under / over paid amounts of
cureent 1ax are recndded as tax refundable f payable due fram 1o the Government,

Deferred tax

Dieferred tax is recognized using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences berween the carrying amouns of assers and

linhilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts vsed for taxaton purposes. The amount of deferred s provided is based on the

armunk of assets and Babilides, using the enacted or substantvely enacted rates of

expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrvis
rxation. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the porton of income expected o be sebject to final ax regime is adjusted in
seeordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release = 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Dreferred tax lighilities are recognized for all mxable wmporary differences and deferred s assets are recognized o the extene that it is
probable thar mxable profit shall ke svalable against which the deducoble emporary differences, unused rax bosses and tax credies can be utilized
Deferred tax assers and lahilides are measwred ar the rx raves thar are expected o apply o the penod when the asset is realized or the liahilitg
15 serled, hased on the tax rates thar have been enacted or substantvely enacoed by the statement of financial posioen date.

Deferred rax is charped or credited in the starement of protic or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged m cnmprehensive income
or equity, in which case it i included in other comprehensive income or equiry,

Ijarah comtracts

Leases where a significant portion of the fisks and rewards of cwnership are retained by the lessor, are classified a5 operating leases, Pavments
made under operating leases are changed wo the profit or loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease [/ ljarah term unless another
systemanc hasis is representarve of the dme partern of the Company’s benefir.

Trade and oiher payables

Laahilitics for trade and other payables are carried ar cost which is the fair value of the consideraton w0 be paid in future for goods and services
recerved,

Property, plant and equipment

Prrsperry, plant and equipment include rwvned, sight of use assets and capital wirk in progress.

Choned

Propeny, plant and equipment, excepr frechold land are stated at cost less accuomulated depreciation and any identfied impairment loss,
Freehald land and capital wark in progeess are stated ar cost less any idlentifred mpairment loss, Cost includes direct cost and relared
overheads, inwerest and borrowing cost including impert dudes and non-refundable purchase taxes, after dedwenng made discounts and rebates
and other costs direcdy atnbutable o the acquisition or conserocton incleding expenditures on matenal, labour and overheads disecdy
relating ro construction, erection and installation of operating fixed assets,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, ooy when it is probahle that
furure eonnnmic benefirs associated wirh the rem wall flowe eo the Company and the cost of the iiem can be measured reliably, Major renewals
:JI'Id ir|'|'|:|ﬂ|1'|,'|1'||, Tits are |;;;|pi|::;,|=<zq'|_| ."||] |:-||1|:;r n_'|_1:J_i:r ;|r:.|,| |:|"|.|i|'||:g'|'|:5,|n;;|: CUEtE are |;,:|13r|__11_*1,| o I,ha' pr\c:ﬁt or ||:-_u Aot d'.l.r\-l'|t_[ ‘.'|'||,' '|_1|_'ri<||;| ir_l. '\.‘L‘I‘Iil_;]]
thev are incurred.

Depreciannn is charged on a systemanc hasis over the useful life of the assers, on the reducing balange methnd, whech reflects the pamerns in
wed in note 18,1

Drepreciatien rn addioons is charged from the month the asset 15 available for use while no depreciaton s charged in the month i which the

which the economic benefiss are consumed by the Company, at the rates spec

asset i disposed off. Depreciaton methods, residual values and useful lives of assers are reviewed an exch financial vear end, and adjusted if

impact on depreciation is significant
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The management of the Company the feviews carryng amnounts of s assets and cash generatng unis tor possible imparrment. 1E such
indicaton exises, the careving amounes of such assets are reviewed o assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount.
Where carrving values excecd the respecmve recoverable amounr, assers are wnrten down e their recoverable amounes and the resuling
impairment loss 15 recopndeed in the profic or loss sceount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs m sell and
value in use. Where an impairment loss 15 recognized, the depreciagon charge is adjusted n the future periods o allocate the asser's revised
carrying amount over its estmared wsebul life.
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asser represented by the difference berareen the sale proceeds and the carrving amount of the
dsset js recogmized a5 an ingome or expense in the profie o1 less seoount,
Right-ofuse assets
“sets held wnder lease arranpements are initially recorded at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease
agreements and the fair value of the leased assers. Diepreciation on leased assets s charged by applving reducing balance method ar the rates
wigd Vet similar ovwned assers, o 08 w0 depreciate the assers aver their estimared vseful lives in view of certainty of ownership of assets at ened
of the lease term.
Capital work-in-progress
Capital work in progress is suted at cost less idenufied impairment boss, if anv. Cost inc
directly artributable overheads and mcludes bormowing cost in respect of qualifying assers as staed in pose 416, These eosts are mansferred o
operating fixed assers as and when the assets are available for their intended vse.

4 Swres, spare parts and loose wols
LUsable stures and spare parts are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizahle value, while items considered obsolete are carned
at mil value, Trems in transit are valued ar cose eomprising invoice valoe plos other directly arrriburable charges paid thereon up-to the balance
sheet date, Provision is made in the financial statements for ohsolete and slow moving stores, spare and loose tonls based on management's
cstinkate as a result of chamges in osage pattern and physical form

47 Swck-in-trade
These are valued ar the lower of the m,":gllzn._'l,l OVEFAEE COSE and ner realizable value EXCEpE for stock in oransit, which 15 valued ar cost
comprising invoice valuee and refared expenses incureed thereon up o the balance sheet dare.
Cozt ig determined as follows:
Raw mavcrial

Finished goods

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

By produces

Mer e
acoeasary to be incoreed i onder i make a sale.
4.8 Financial instruments

4.8.1 Receognition and initial measurement

Al financral assets and financial Babiliies are mitially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

A financial asser (unless ivis o trade debe witheus o signifieant finaneing component) or financial Habilivy i instally measured at Eair valoe
plus, for an item nor at FVTTPL, mansscoon costs thar are directly anobuerable o s scquisidion or issee. A trade debr withour a
sigmificant financing compenent is imitially measared at the mansacton price,

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assers

O inital recngniton, a financial asser 15 classifiod 25 measueed ar Amorozed onst, Fair Yalue Theowgh Orther Comprehensoee Income
(FVOCT), Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FYTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is classified as FVOCT or FVTPL.
Amaortized cost

A financial asser is measured ar amordzed coseif it mees both of the following conditions and is not designated as a0 FVTPL:

These assets are subsequendy measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methed, The amortzed cost @5 redweed by
imparment losses. Interest income, forelgn exchange gains |/ losses and impairment lnsses are recopnized in starement of profic or loss,

Any gain or loss on derecognition is reeogmized in statement of proficor Joss

izable vabwe signities the estimated selling price in the ordinary eourse of business less estimared costs of completion and costs

ludes the expendiires on material, labowr, appropriae

at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value
at lowver of weighted wverage cost and net realizable value

net realizable value

it 15 held within a business maodel whose ohjectve i o hold assets o eollecr contracnual cash lows; and
its eontractual rerms give rise on specified dares o cash lows that are solely payments of principal and interese on the

]'II:'II.'I.1'.I.|'|11| ampoune purscand I,
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Financial assers measured at amortzed cosr n'l:-l'l'lpfi:‘{ af cash and bank balznces, ||:-|1g 1erim n:]l'.'l'!-cl.‘ill,.‘i. mrade debres, advance, {:|l'.'|_}li$~i¢‘.-'-.
prepavments and other receivables,

Diebt instrument - FVOCI

A dehr nstrument is measured ar FVOCL IE iz meets hoth of the following conditons and 15 not designared as ar FVTPL:
- it is held within 2 business model whose objectve is achieved by both collectng contracmal cash flows and sclling financial assets; and
- its contractual terms gve nise on specitied dates to cash flows thae are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount cucstanding
These assers are subsequently measured at fair value, Inerest income caleulated uging the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment losses are recognized in seatement of profic or loss Other net gains amnd losses are recognized in OCL
O de-recogninon, pains and losses accumulated in OCT are reclassified o smrement of profic or loss. However, the Company has no
such msrrwment ar the reporting dare,
Equity instrument - FVOCI
On imimal recopniton of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevicably elect w present subsequent
changes in the imvestment’s fair value in OCIL This electon s made on an investment-by-investment hasis.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recopmized a2 income in statement of profit or loss unless the
dividend elearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCT and these
imvestments are never reclassified v profit or boss, However, the Company has no such instruiment at the reporting dare,
Fair value through profit or loss (FYVTPL)
All finanezal assets non classified and measured ar amortized cost or FVOCL as desenbed above, are measured at FWTPL
O ininal recognition, the Company may irrevocably designare a financial asset thar atheraise meets the requirements to be measured a1
amortized cost or at FVOCT as ar FVTPL if doing so eliminares or significanty reduces an acoounting mismarch thar would otherwise
arise.
These assets are subsequently measured at tair value, MNet gains and losses, incloding any interest or dividend income, are recoynized in
staternent of profic or Joss, However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date,
Financial liahilities
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized eost or FVTPL. A financial Bability is elassified as at FVTPL if it is classified
as hebd-for-teading, it is a derivative o it is designated as such on inital recogniton, Finaneial liabilides ar FVTPL are measured ar fais
value and ner pains and losses, ncluding any mteresr expense, are recognized 1 smrement of profic or loss, Crither finaneial habalines are
subsequently measured at amorized cost using the effective interest method, while the interest expense and foreign exchange pains and
lovsses are recogmized in starement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecogninon is also recognized 1o statement of profic or loss,
The Companys financal habilifies compnse mrade and other payables, long term finances, abilines against assets subject wo Anance
lease, shart serm borrowings and acerued mark-up,
Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company dereeognizes a financial asser when the conteactual vights w the cash flows from the financial asser expire, or it transters
the rights o recerwve the conemctual cash Hows inoa cransacoon in which substnually all of the nsks and rewards of cwnership of the
financial asser are rransferred or in which the Company neither mransfers nor retains substantally all of the rsks and rewards of
ownership and it does nor retain conteol of the financral asser.
The Company might enter into transactions wherchy it transfers assers recognized inits statement of financial posinon, but reins
either all or substantally all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, In these cases, the ransferned assets are not derecognized.
Financial linhilities
The Company derecopnizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also
{||:r{'-:,'|:-_!_1r'|iz|;_~. a financial liability when it terms are maodified and the cash flows of the modified liakility are subsmnally differens, in
which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized ar far value On derecognionn of 2 financial liability, the
difference berween the carmyang amount exanguished and the consideraton paid (including any non-cash assets transterred or Liabilities
assumed) is recognized in seatement of profit or loss,
Trade debis, deposits and other receivables
Trade debts are stated initially at the fair valee, subsequent to inital recognition, These are stated at their smortized cost as reduced by
appropriate provision for impairment, known impaired receivables are written off, while receivables considered doubeful are fully
provided for,
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The impairment frr doubrful acenunes 5 based on the Company’s assessment the eollectabilioy of enunterparny aceounts. The Company
regrulardy reviews irs trade debis thar remain owrstanding past their applicable payment terms and establishes allowance and praential
write-oifs by considering facts such as histoncal expenience, credit quality, age of the accounts receivable balances and current coonomic
crmndinions thar may atfect customer's abiline oo pay,
4.8 Offsening of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial posison only when the Company
has a legally enforceable nght to set off the recognized amounts and intends o either serile on a net basis or realize the asser and sede the
Eif‘l.|_1||i|§. .‘.i1'|'!||.|||_'||'|¢|:-uh|:r.
410 Tmpairment
Mon-Financial assets
The carrying amount of the Companys non-financial assers, other than inventores and deferved tax assets are reviewed ar each reporting dave
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generanng unit i the greater of it value in vse and its fair value bess cose o sell. In assesang valoe
in use, the esomated fumere cash fows are discounted o thelr present values wsing a pre-tax diseount fate thar reflecs current marker
assessments of the ame value of money and the risks speafic m the asset or cash generating wnit,
An impairment loss 15 recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit esceeds its estimated recoverable amount.,
Impairment losses are recopnized n the statement of |'!-r|:-ﬁ| or Josa, Impatement losses recopnized in respect of cash generating units are
allocared o reduce the carrying amounts of the assers i3 unit on 3 poo rata basis. Impairment losses recognized i pror penods are assessed
at each reparting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or oo lenger exists. An impairment Ioss is reversed if there has been a

change in the estmates used b determing the recoverable aman. An impairment koss is reversed only to tha extent that the asset’s carrving

amount after the reversal does nor exceed the carrving ameunt thar would have been derermined, ner of deprecianon and amornezanon, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.
4.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalenes for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash in ha miel, runsing inance and cash at hanks,
412 Revenue recognition
According o the core prnciple of IFRS 13, the Company recognizes revenue o depict the teansfer of promised goods and services 1o
CUsinineErs in an Amkoieng t:!'-:'n: Te ”e'f_‘lh |1'||.' {‘l:-l'l.-\.i-:h Fatirm [{¥] w|'||ﬂ1 the |._:II'.:."I|1fII'I:.' r:r.|u'|’_|:! 1] |;9-c' E |'|Ii|||.1,| in e scﬂ'lf‘ll'u_:'l.' |.|rf [:::II:\I.' fiatl -{l:\. :'|1"||,| REFV il:\e'h..
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with thar core principle by applving the following seeps:
- ldemify the contract with a customer;
- ldbenuify the performance obliatons in the contracy;
Dretermine the transaction price;
- Allncare the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract;
- Recognize revenue when the enmry sansfies a performance obhiganon.
Revenue iz mensured ot the fair valuee of the consideration received or receivable, and represents the amount receivable for goods supplied,
Revenue from the sale of goods i recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation (a1 a point of time) by ransferring
promesed goods o customer being when the goods are invoiced and delivered to customers. This crteria of revenue recognition for its uming
and amount is consistent with the previously adopred accounting standand therefore, the management coneludes that the adoption of IFRS 15
does nit have an impact en the iming and amount of the revenue recognition of the Company,
4.13 Interest income
[nterest income is recopnized as it acerues onder the effective imerest tate method.

4.14 Contract Habilities

A contract lizhiliey is the ebligation of the Company o trans

P gouds or services w4 customer for which the Company has received

]

consideration (or an amount of consideration i3 dug) from the cestomen. 1 2 customer pavs consideration before the Company transfers

ponds or services to the customer, a contract liabdlity is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is ealier),
Contract lishilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs ander the contract. It also includes refund lisbilities ansing out of
customers” right o clam amounts from the Company on account of conteactoal delays i delivery of performance obliganons and incennves

o arget achisvements. The Company's contract liahilities comprise advances from customers,

4.15 Forelgn currency translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recosded at the rates of ex
linhiliries denominaned in I'|:-r|.'i;_1n currencies are te-trnslared into Pak Rupees ar gxchange rates prevailing on the statement of

hange prevailing on the dates of transacoons. Monetary assets and
inancial

position date. All exchange differences are charged to the statement of profic or loss
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Borrowing costs

Borrenwing costs are recoprmized s an expense in the penod in which these are incurred exceps to the extent of borpoanng eosts that are
directhy atteibutable s the acquisition, construeton or prodoction of 2 gualifving asset, Such borrowing costs, if any, aee capitalized as pare of
the cost of the relevant asser.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation a5 a result of past events, it is probable that an
ottty of resourees will be rr|.|L|:|n'd i settle the -:||:-|i;_[_|li-:|r| and o relinble estimate of the amount can be made, Provigions are reviewed ak
each seatement of financial posison date and adjuseed w reflect the current best estimate.

Related party transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis excepr in circumstances where, subject o the approval of
the Beard of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company oo do so

Dividend

Dividend o Ordinary sharcholders is recognized as & deduction from acoumulared profit in the statement of changes n equity and a= a liabiliry
in the Company’s financial smtements in the vear in which the dwidends are approved by the Board of Directors or the Company's
sharchelders as the case may be,

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EI% s caloulated by dividing the peofic or loss annbutable oo ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighred averige number of
ordinary shares curstanding during the year.

Dilured EPS i caleulated by adjesting basic EI'S with weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be isseed on comeersion of all
dilugive potendal ordinary shares o ordinary shares and post-ax effect of changes in profic or loss ansibutable w ordinary sharcholders of
the Company thar would sesule from comversion of all dilutive protential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Loan from sponsors

Loan from sponsors is accounted for as per Technical Release 32 "Director's Lean” ("TR 327 issued by the Insdtoee of Chartered
Aceowntans of Pakisman ("ICAD"), on 25 January 2000 which provides specific guidance on Directors loans thar are intesese free and
repayable at the discretion of the entite. Loans are accounted for 25 per cliuse 33,1 of TR 32 which states thar " fow fo o snbity by the divectar

g ot B rrvonded Gr ey e s, Thee or mod slesegmently re-seasmred

wiicl o5 apreed fo B fuvd ot e e

o of e ety deer o e e et of

Government grants

Crowernment gramts relasing to export support are recopnized when there is reasomable assurance that entity will comply with the conditions
ateached 1o it amd prant will be received,

Operating profic

Operatng profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing activities of the Company as well as other incrme
related to operatng sctivites, Operaang profit excludes finance costs, other expenses and incomse mxes

Segment teporing

Sepment repoerting is based on the operanng (business) segments of the Company. An operatng sepment 15 a component of the Company thar
engages in business activites from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to ransactions
with any of the Company’s ather components. An operatng segment’s operating resales are reviewed regmlady by the Chief Executive to make

degizions abaut resources 0 be allocated oo the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information s available,

Segment fesults that are reporied 1o the Chief Executive include items dieectly atsiburable o a segment a5 well as those that are albocared cna
reasonable hasis.
The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to nsks and rewards which differ from the risk and

rewards of other sepments, Sepmenss reporsed are sugar, ethanol and wop pas & others,

223 2022
Share capital Rupces Bupees
Authorized share capital
L 20,000,000 (Z022; 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 1,200, (M, MM 1,200,000,000
Issned, subscribed and paid-up share capital
117,706, 300 (20222 117,706,3000 voting ordinary shares of Bs. 10 each fully paid in cash 1,177,063,000 1,177,063,000

Share preminm

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in Secton 8102) and 813} of the Companies Agr, 2007,

Loan from sponsars - imsecnred

This represents interest free loan amountng o Ra 3,633 million (2022 Ra. 3,635 million) obrined from the sponsors of the Company and is
repayable ar the discreton of the Company.
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Long term finances - secured

falamic mode of financing:
sindh Modaraba - Disviminiiee Mo
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Mark-up bearing finances from conventional bank:

Mational Bank of Pakistan - Spedicrend s fimavee

The Bank of Pu ni'.ilr - Terme fivance

Pake Omnan [ovestment Comparty Limited

Allied Bank Limired

Conventional banks

Tslumic banks

Sanctloned
Limit { Bs.)

SO RS

2 A00, 000000

SO CCKD

230 000 (00

00,000 000

Tenure and basis of
principal repayment

) eqqual insralimenes payalde
at the end of each month
beginning from January 04,
2019

16 equal instalmenes payahle

¢ end of each yuarter
begrinming from June 29,
20015, Imstalmenis were

deferred from Janoary 01,

200 g Decemiber 31, 200M),

11 eyl quarrerly
il:l.!-lil:.r.HL'I:Ir:i IM'\.H.I:I:.L' at ':]:IL
SLATT of  each quarier
beginning from  Seprember
121

14 equal insralmens payalde
at the end of each quarter
beginning on April 08, 2021

B equal guartedy instlments
J'.:l:.':linlr ar the starr of each
AUAERET |.l|:_;':1|'|:'|i:|:|_|.; from
Fehruary 11, 2021
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Terme fnance

Mark-up as per
Agreement

) o 2023 2
I Rupces Rupees
ar | 4422412 ] 22112008 |
4,422,412 22,112,008
."‘ -1-1-'..3_'d14:'}i_ J-.':"..!'I'.I.H-'-‘I,"]'.l:
a3 a0 L A0LO00L000
8.4 62,857,144 714,289
55 05 394,450
567,232,131 1437087730
571,654,543 1,460,000, 735
g (367,232,131 (1,048, B0, 558
i3 [4,422412) (17,680,556}
- 393,520,554

Security

6 Momth KIBOR Tide documens of the assers are exclusively in the name of Sindh

us 350 bps
plus 330 bp

Modarakxa for the entre tenor of the Faciling.

3 Muomth KIBOR This loan is secured by way of st pan passu hypothecanon charge

pll,li 20k I:p-;

3 Mondh KIBCHR

|::-|l.|-. 250 |.:-|:|5

5.00%h

SBP base rate
plus/ 1 Month
KIBOR + M

byps

over all present and fomare moveable fied assets and mortgage over
lund and building and any other immovable property of the Company
(U 1, 11 & I]I_I

wver the Fcility amoune, respectively.

for an amount of Bs 3,200 mullicen wath 25% margin

The Inan s al=a secured I_'.:.' WAyE of assignment of all Insurances as cr-
lss payec or assignee, lien on project acecounts and  personal
FUATANCESS of all .‘~|1-:||1'=-:|r'= # Direcrors u.l-:-np; with all net worth
staternents. The keaders have subordinared the fepayment of afiy debs
ur finance facihtes availed from the Sponsors and Direceors ol the
entire liabilities of the Company towards the syndicate are repaid.

This loan s secured by way of ranking charge and Isc pan passu
|.'|:|..|r.1;4.' of Rs. 2000 million each, over all present and future current
assets of the O ATPANY and st pari passi (‘|1:l.|'-.1{- of Re 400 million
over all present and fusuere fised assews of Disdllery Unit -IT (Land,
|_'|l.|.|||:1|n!; and Flanr & manhlnrr.':],_ |\.'s;|_h':r|n'l:.' and ]'u'n;r.-nﬂl uaranres

of all Directors of the {.-I:III'IF'HI:

L

Thiz subsidized loan is obuained under the long term financing Faciling
scheme provided by SBP o finance impore of brand new machinery.
This loan is secured by way of pard passu charge over fixed assers
|-':-|.'u.r|.'|::. at |.'ru|: [I.J i:i. ."\luxu.t‘.l"rlrg:l:rh IEI.L'I.IJI.IITIE" I:I.I'II.I I'.\L'li:l.‘ll.ll".\, P]:Il:lr ard
machinery of the Company with a 25% margin (amountng o Bs, 2
milbicn] and personal puarantees of all Directors of che Coampany.

The Comgpany has obtained borrowing onder Refimance Scheme for
ayment of Wages & Salaries by the Stare Bank of Pakisman (SEP) ar
pay £ Salaries by the Stare Bank of Pak RE
subsidized rare in six reanches on various dates. Fair valos .’u.|1l.|:-t|:ﬂi.'f'.l
S ]
+

1 bps per annum and prevailing market rate and same

has heen measured as difference between subsidized rate
KIBOR plus 3
has been recogrized as Gowvernment prant io accordance with TAS 20
"Aeonunng for Government Greants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance’ (see note 11 to these uneonsolidated Anancial statements)

amormzed 1

and 15 bed the sratement of |_3n,|r"*-|, ar loss, i hine wath

z
the recognition of intes

st expense the geant i compensating. The
grant s condinonal subject o fulfilment of certain condine
defined in the SBP Befinance %
st pan passu charge over fxed assers including land, hulding, plant
and rmachinery locared ar Unic 1T, with 25% margin over the facilite
amount and personal puaransee of all Dhrectors of the Company.

5 A%

witbe, The boan is secured |.lj- WY of




1]

1.1

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 A2
Lease Habdliey Mot Rupees Rupees
Lease ||.||'|||'|r!.' v 03 AT A41 242 2500 Jp2
Less: Curtent pogtion (189,437 £97) (239838, 102)
Closing balance EIEWETNEL] 2 AT2, 2040
w1 Opening balanee 242 250 362 433 253 T0T
Addd: Assers acquired during the year 41 5,000, B0 3,956,000
657,311,162 437,189,707
Less: Payments [ adjustments (153,635,321 [ 144,834 345)
503,675,841 242,250,362
Less: Current pottion 13 (189 437 693 (239438, 100
Clnsing halance 31!1-,1§§,I-1§ 2 AT 2

1.1 The |:||"n|;|‘-u| payment dhee under the lease AgroemEnts Agaregate o K= 5037 million ::-'II':‘"' Re 2423 malbion) and are |1.|:.'.J'::-I|,' in |1'u,|-'1||'|:.
installments under variows agreements, lotest by Septermber 2026, The present values of minimum lewse pavments have been discounted a
et pate mplicic in the lease, which ranges from 21.37% 1o 28.49% per anoum (022 9949% 1o 1950% per annom), All lease agreements
curry rerewid Lll.'".i):.lﬁ ae ':hl\.' \'.'III:I '.:IF ILH."SI. '.JIL'I.'J:II.‘I. lll\.ml.".'L:I'.. '...'IL' [:I\.J\.I'.I'I:lnﬁ'\: i.lﬂl.'lll:l:i ECk L':Gl.rl.'i'il. J.lh IIIH'.iJ:.IH (18 FIIJTI.'I.IH'{I. |J:|L' Il\.'ﬂ.“\.'lj Assets I.'I:II.III
completion of the respective lease terme There are o financial reswrictions imposed by lessors and the taxes, repaies, replacements and

insurance costs are borne by the lessee.

0.2 A reconcilianon beraeen the gl of future minimuam lease pAVImENTs and their present values at year end i5 as follows:
223
Future % Frosent
i Finance
minimum value of future
et for future R
lease 3 minimum lease
perinds
paymentE payinents
Particles ~ =smesssemseeseeses o e T b
B later than cme vear 251,504,232 GG 530 |54 43T G
Later than one vear and not Lweer than five vears L AOR, HRO Srni0 532 4,236,148
G18,372912 114,697,071 503,675,841
2022
Future ¥ Present
s Finance .
IR wilue of future
cost for fumire 5.5
lease ; minimum lease
pesiods
pu}lmrnh\: F!’!I-'I'I'IEI'IHG
Eopigyles 00900020 sesesessssssss=ees Rupeeg == =-comemmmnn=-
Mt laver than cme vear 252,579,243 13,141,141 e L L W e
Later than one vear and not laver than five vears 283659 4724 {50 2 412 2ol
255,816,162 13,565,800 242,250,362
'i'..'.'\:-:rr.'}'-é.-.l.n'.vn'.r & Hy darrer are .-.l.-')'-;-.':!"w.'.-'.' 2023 2022
Driscounnt fagtor %) 21350 - 28 4% LA Ay L R
Term of lease (vears) 3-5 1-5
Security deposits (V) 10- 3 10k - 30
Mo 2023 2022
el val
Dreferred labilides Rupees Rupees
Staff renrement benefits - iy T SR, 2HA 209 6,436 046
Deeferred mxation fi.2 - -
Réa, 248 104 TT0, A3, O

Staff retirement benefits - Gratgly

The latest actuarial vahmton of the Company’s defined benefit plan was conducted at September 30, 2023 vsing Projected Uit Credie Method. Detail

of ohligation for defined benefir plan is a2 folloas:

N 2023 . L
o Rupees Rupces
Present value of defined benefit ohlipation Ly Rl 288,200 TTh, 438045
Liability as at 30 Seprember A6, 288,209 16,438,046
2023 2022
10,11 Mowverment in defined benetit obligation Moy BRupecs Rupees
Prisent value of defined benefi: oblipation as at U1 Chetober TTEAIE MG Ha7, 245,153
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Currenr service cose frr this yaar LTy 72,386,261 a9.361,423
Inrerest cosc for the vear T 76,718,775 52,862,224
Benefits paid during the vear (5,987 854) [EATIE
Actuarial {wain) [ loss on present value of defined benefic ohlipaion jor.2 29,267 035) 16,932 715
Present value of defined bencfit obligatnon as at 30 Seprember H86,2688 200 T 76, A 38
2023 2022
L2 Changes in actuarial gains MNose Rupees Rupes
Opserving actuarial grain
Actuarnial {loss) fgain dunng the year 20267 035 (16,932,735
II.h:lrgn,- e other 1_'|,.-I'|'||_:|1'|,"'!q'|1_lll.-;' e LT a (29,267 16,932,735
Unrecopnized actuarial gains - -
113 Charge for the year
1! 1 I
Curnene service cost ) 59 %01 ,423
Interest cost for the vear TG TR TS L R6E 224
Mer amount chargeable to profit or loss account 149,105,036 112,223,647
Statement of Other Comprebensive Income
Actuarial I-:|::s;_-"|:|:a|n} on defined benefic c:lsllgarn:.-n 20 EET (135 146,932 735
119,535 (M 12%, 156,552
02y e et il 20200 2019
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Historfeal Trformats
Present value of defined
e 486,268,200 776,438,046 248,153 508,436,982 414,603 881
heneht abhpanons
Experence adiusme
HPeI0OE A CH L (29,267 035) 16,932,735 (3,966,347) 10,136,137 42,924,778
arising on plan Labiliey oss ’
1014 Assumptions used for valuation of defined benefit sehomes 2022
Discomunt e used For ingensst cost 140,50%

Discount mbe used for vear end obligaton

Expecred rates of salary increase in furnure 12.25%
: 5 SLIC 20012005 SLIC 2001-2005
Expected moralin: rawe ; /

Sethack 1 Year Serhack 1 Year
Withdrawal Rares Ape-Based Age-Based
Rerirement age ) vears 6 vears

1L L5 Expected expense for nexe year

The rsc_:n'rrn:l ETANITY EXpense foor the vear ending on er-m'l:r.l'u'r A, 224 s esnmated ar Bs 173003 mallion.
1016 The Plan exposes the Company o scoearial risks such as

Salary risks

[he risk that the final salary at the dme of cessaton of serviee is greater than what is assomed. Since the benefie is calenlated on the final salary
(arhich wall closely reflect inflation and other moeroecomamee fuctors), the henefit amaount increases os salary increnses.

Maortality / wdthdrawal risks
There is also a potential msk thar the scvaal morality £ withdreawal raves are different.

10,17 Gramiry scheme entides the members o gramite vpon resignation, rermination, cady retrement, retrenchment, death and dismissal. Graowiy is
based v the last month's basie salary for ench year of serdce.

10.1.8 The average duration of the defined benetit obligation is 4 years

11,19 Sensitivity analysis
It the: significanrt acruarial assumpd
other variables held constant, the impact on present value of the defined benefis obligation as ar 30 Seprember 2023 would have been as

wns used o esrimare the defined benefic ohligaton ar rthe repocting dare, had facreansd by 100 bps widh all

teallomars:

Gratuiry

Ilnpm,'.r on present value of defined
henefit abligation

Increase WM bps  Decrease 100 bps
---.---------RuFuq_-:q.----------.--
Iiscount mie movement (A5 221 (50 O, 550 (s

.‘:i:li.ar:. gre weth rare GY2 310 T 33527 403

ANNUAL REPORT 2023




TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Althoaugh the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approsmaticon of
the sensitiviey 1f the assumptions showen,

Noi 202% 2022
10.2 Deferred taxation Rupees Rupees
Dreferred ax labiliy a3 at Seprember 30, 2023 on wxable wmposary differences anising
In respect of;
- Aseelerated tax: deprediaiion ex operaling e assels 2488051 478 1 88, 834 220
- Lecrsedd qrreis - oot 202,70 171,807.618
Dieferred mx asset as at September 30, 2023 on deductble temporary differences ansng
in respect of:
- U mscred Sane fasrs and deoe ety 22 (20847 693 (1,698,200
- Nk mesivemens el (257 423 581 (151,537 415
."'.r-.-.-:rrml_n:.r Farkars f"rr.hll'.:." H-.-.r:'.v."fv.'..l'w Fard [_’.-1_!_"-I|'|I'JI|:.-\.: Ili“.']::'{f .533_:1
1021 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
A oae O] Ohernber
RI‘I."':?_'L”:TEI:I i:l Sr:lrh‘:rlr'll.r II‘F I‘T-Clr-lr r .I.IIHM
Aecelerated fax ci.:'|1n'|'i.|li|l|| i |-|1rr:|ri:|;_: fined asets -"?{:‘_112:2 SR :2-|-2..1-.1:4|._:|2":.
- Lexsed assets - AT 024,083 (24 4K5,683)
1 mused tax losses and v credits |:_-|F:,.'!'-1_-.|.|'JI':-: M2 A3
- Sttt reorement benefits (111,900,975 (3, 700,097y
- Peoviginn It Wiarkee's Profit Pasticipation Fund (21,803,077 (38,215}
(i d14,807) 3,711,351
Recopruzed in Stacement of Crther Comprehensive Income:
- Staff reorement bencfics 8,414,807 (3,711,351

1

12

12.1

10,22 As ar 30 Sepemtber 20025 defersed mx asset amounting w0 Rs 12223 million (2022: Bs 20155 million) on unused tax bosses and minimmem eax
credic /s 113 has oot been recopndzed in these financial statements as sufficient mxable predics are not expeoted m be prodable against which
the Company can wse benefits therefrom, Management is of the view thar recognition of deferred tax asset shall be re-assessed on 30
Seprember 2024,

Deferred income - Governiment grant 2023 2022
Mol Rupees Rupees

Deferred income - Government grant 83
Crpemang balance R22 248 11,281,533
Recognized during the year - -
Crrant amorized d.ITiH'i: the vear 29 :'.'!--'.-f,.'-!-l-ﬁ: |"-|,'I.-H'-.| 335
Closing balance - B22,248
Less: Current portion showen under current Babilites (622 248,

Shaort term horrowings - seciered

Interest rate 2023 2z
I [ T Tt ki Rupees Rupaes
.1-!...'.'}.-.'.-}5 S Bdradiviie '_.';'om' sanisirame! S -faciird
Cash finance 1851 - 270 2 026,216,252 4.861,926.418
Buanning fimance 18.76 - 25,56 w302 155 0y 302 155
Export re-finance/ FAPC 3o 101278 - 2567 G, 507 500,000 5055,612,002

B, 433,218,407 9,997,040,575

The Company has availed shor term borrsing facihoes from vanows commercial banks under mark-up arrangements having aggregate sancticned
limits of Re 13,775 million ::.'[|32: Ra. 13,775 million). These Facilities ave secured l.|:‘|:|'ill.|_|_§]: |:|lx_'|.|_|_r|\c of stock-in-trade, Len an debioes, i.'|'|:||.’}_1|: ovet the

present and future current and fixed assets, lien on export docaments and personal guarantees of the sponsonng Directors as well as subordination of

hoan from Directors. The outstanding borraing pledged against stock-in-trade amount o Ra. 4,751 million, (2022: Bs 6,014.3 millioa).
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

13 Corrent portion of non-current liabilities o
Long term finances - Conrendana! baw &
Lomg term finances - Lo do
Leuse liability i
Deferred grant it

Mnlase

14 Trade and other payables
Trade and other ereditors - s
Creditors for capial expendinure - s
Advanees from customers - Lo 14.1
Retention money payable
Federal Exeise Duty and Sales Tax payable
[ncome Tax deducted ar source
Withhelding Sales Tax pavahle
Workers' Profir Participaion Fund 4.2

Acerued labiliges

Oiiher habalioes

23 2022

Rupees Rupees
567,232,131 1,048, 580 588
4422412 17,089 3%
189 437 693 239 838 1002
= 522248
1,092,236 1,307 ,230,534

23 2022

Bupees Rupees
617,614,259 196,962, 863
582,459,281 1,635,956,214
3,731,157 88 3,794 259 358
11,127,122 10,324,620
3H3, 290 350 422 315,627
156,002 487 [},942 977
- 4,103,742
113110016 56,355,112
115,291 276 137,334 859
052 681 435 B70.014,710
6,664,033,363 7457 575,122

14.1 ‘This includes Bs 158,13 million received feom Trading Corporation of Pakisan (TTCP™ against sale of sagar, Tn the vear 2000 the
£ e ) i

Fend Directorate of the Government, in eonjunetion with the law enforcement ageneies lifted and sold TCP sugar stocks, despite

protest from the Company,

This hitting of the sugar stocks by Government eonstituted an event of force majeore under clavse 12 of terms of renders and the

tenders would, therefore, be discharged due oo frustraton of the coneracr. Accorndingly, the management, based on the legal opinion, is

of the view that the Company atter the event of force majeure is not required o make delivery of sugar to TCP and no penalties or

mgidental charges will anse on nr:l1-|}¢ffﬂf mance af the conrract, Farther, the f,'runpang. apreed o setile the remaining amount o TCP

subiject to reconciliation of quantity forcibly lifted by TCP which wo-date is pending

14.2  Workers" Profit Pardcipation Fund Made
Bialance as at 01 Chetober
Provision for the vear I
Mark-up on Workers' Preofit Participation Fund

Paveenes made -;hu']ﬂg the rear

15 Mark-up accrued
Mard-up on barromings frow conpeniional bk
Long term Inans - seared

Shart term boreowings - avared

e . Mare
16 Provigion for taxation
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Prowvision for the vear i2

Less: Adjustments

Balance at the end of the vear
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23
Bupees
56,355,112
113000

J——
(50,355,112

2022
Rupees
S0LOHG, S0

56,355,112

(500,05, S0y

113,110,016 56,355,112
023 022
Rupees Rupees
43,712,395 (3,161,582
313,579,164 365,905,871
359,201,779 431,127,753
23 22
Rupees Rupees
467 (G5, 454 321,862 441
790, 9T, 467 065,454
1,258,041,914 788,927 935
(46T 065,454) 13121 862,441
790,976,460 467,065,454
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Contingencies and commitiments

17.1
17.1.1

17.1.2

1713

17.14

17.1.5

17.1.6

Contingencies

The Government of Punjab under the powers conferred through the Punjab Excise Act, 1914 levied a charge of Rs. 2 per
licre on manufacruning of spirt (Ethanal) on 03 July 2012, The management filed Writ Petitions no. 18347/2012 and
33334/ 2014 against the above levy in the Honorble Lahore High Couee (Pthe Court"), The Court, vide order dared 15
July 2016, dismissed the aforementioned Wrir Peritions.,

Thereatter, the Company tiled an Intra Court Appeal Nao, 1219 S26, of the same b, against the atorementioned order
of the Court, This Intra Court Appeal was dismissed vide order dated 10 Ocrober 2007 on the technical ground of
maintainability, The Court stated in the aforementioned order that the remedy of Intra Court Appeal did not lic against
the Cheder dated 13 July 2006, and, therefore, dismissed the appeal. However, an Henorable Division Bench of the Court
vide Oheder dared 10 Awguse 2006, divecred the Company along with other petiionees to deposit the excise duty pavalle
under the impugned notificaton with the Deputy Begiserar {(Judicial), Lahore High Court, and resteained the respondents
from collectng the same from the Company, The same inrerim order holds the feld dll date. Till date the Company has
deposited Rs, 24 million with the Depury Registrar (Judicial), Lahore High Court which is disclosed in nore 23 o the
financial statements,

The Company then filed CPLA New 433072017 against the Order dated 10 Ocraber 2007, The Henorable Supreme Court
of Pakistan has set aside the Chrder daved 10 Oetober 2017, and remanded the marter back o the Court for decision on
merits vide oeder daved 20 November 2017, However, no date for hearing has been fixed dll date against the above
tentioned order,

Based on the opinion of the Company's legal counsel, the management is confident of favorable ourcome regarding this
case, hence, no peovision has been recognized in these financial staterments.

The learned DCIR vide oreder dated 04-05-2023 passed an order for recovery of advance wax amounting to Re,
TOU26,73%/ - Taxpayer being aggrieved with the order filled an appeal before CIR (A). The appeal bas been heard on 19-
12-2023 and decision is swmited. In this regards, 2 fivourable ourcome is expected

Markup on shore & long term loans has been disallowed againse the local sales and allocared o disellery unic. Resuleandy
loss of the company has been decreased by Rs, 39,731,756, Taxpayer being aggrieved filed an appeal before CIR Appeals.
The same has been decided in fvour of the department. Further, the taxpayer being aggrieved has filed Appeal before
ATIR, which was heard on (8-04-2021 and passed order having ITA nee 2491 & 2132/LB/2013 dated 1-06-2021 by
directing the department to re-assess the case, Re-assessment proceedings are awaited. The Company’s Management
expects favourable outcome due ti which oo provision has been recorded in these financial statements,

Tax Credie u/s 638 amounting to Bs 2505506/ on plint and machinery has been disallowed by the learned DCIR
Taspayer being agprieved fled an appeal before CIR Appeals. The same has decided in favour of the taxpaver. Further,
the department has filed Appeal before ATIR, which was heard on 08-(4-2021 and passed order having ITA no, 2491 &
2132/LB/ 201 3 daved 1-06-2021 whereby the decision of CIR (A) was u]'}ht:l.(l by ATIR, Being agerieved with the decision
of ATIR, COHTIpY filed 2 writ pretition ll:n.'ing number WE G8259 /2019 and lu::lring at the same is ]'lr_'u:h':]g for |‘::il'.i[|.]_-:_
before Honourable Labore High Courr. Management is confident of a favourable cuteome in this regard,

The Learned DCTR started prr:-l:r.n:'.dings /s 177 and made additions under various heads amounting o K. 664,275 K02/ -
theough order ufs 122(1) dated 12-12-2017. Hesultansly loss of the Company has been decreased by the same amount,
The taxpayer filed an appeal before CIR () against the said addidons which was decided vide order no. 18-A4/V daved (09-
02-2021. The same has been decided in the favor of department. Furthermore, the taxpayer being aggrieved has filed
Appeal betore ATIR on 07-04-2021, Heaning of the same 15 still pending, and favourable outcome is expecred.

The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/s T1{1)/2601) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby he imposed penalty of Rs,
156,66000%6, - ufs 33 on account of late filing of sales mx retums along with defaole surcharge of Rs 28, 768,046/- u/s
341 wide order bearing no. CNo, LTOEnf-16/5T/2601)/19465 dated 12-05-2022. The BRI being aggrieved has filed an
appeal before CIR [(A) on 14-006-2022 against the said order. The CIR (A) confirmed the order of DCIR, Being agerieved,
the company filed an appeal before honoumble ATIR,

The honourable ATIR in STA Moo LRU3/LE/2022 deleted the penalty of B 156,660,695 whereas, confirmed the default
surcharges of Rs 28,768,046/ - Being aggrieved with order of ATIR, the CIR LTO (Legal) filed an appeal having reference
ney GUFYS 2023 and the same has not been fixed for hearing, Management is confident of a favourable outcome in this
regard,
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17.1.7

17.1.8

17.1.9

17.1.10

17.1.11

17.1.12

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

The learned DCIR inigated proceedings ufs 8(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 wheee be disallowed inpat tax of Rs
14,384,734 /- on account of claim in violation of section 8 vide order beaning no, CNaLTO/ ST/ ES&C-10,/DRRA S 2020/ -
2021 /5273 daved 15-08-2021, The RP filed an appeal before CIR (A) which was heard on 16-02-2022 in which the learned
CIR (A} has set aside the proceeding with the direction that re-assessment of ¢ase has to be made vide order beaning no.
019/ ASN dared 04-03-2022,

The learned DCIR izsued reminder notice dated (M03.2022 in response o which RP duly replicd - Bur Unforunaeely
without eomsidering the reply , the learned DOCIR dsseed order w/s 11(2) in which learned DCIR apain disallewed input sax
amounting w Rz 14384734/~ Being aggrieved with said onder RP filed an appeal before CIRGA). The same has been
heard and favourable outcome is expecred.

The Learned DCIR issued Show cause nooce (SCNY dated 21-05-2021 wherein DCIR has confronted the difference in
sales and bank credits .'||r||:-|.|:r'|l:i1|g o R 2-1.&!-1'&'1.'1“&.431.-" -

The said SCN was challenged in High Court who was granted sy in ICA No 38640202 1 dated  22-06-2021, However,
the learned DICIR issued order which was served on 22-06-2021.

Hirwever, DCIR was not aware of stay ssued order 1n which the addignns made of Rs 22 897 630561/~ and creared
demand of Re 60,8600,328 513/ The said demand has been staped by High Coore (HC) vide order dated 04-11-2021 i the
C.M no 42021,

The taxpayer filed an appeal before CIR [A) apainse the said demand in which CTR {A) seated thae the decision of CIR (A}
remains reliane on final decision of High court vide order barcode no 2000001 15208904 dated 23-12-2021, Furthermere;
the axpayer being aggricved has filed Appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the said order of
Learned CIR -:_."._:l o 31012022 which iz ]'K'II{I.irIF :l.ljilu|i1::|ri.|1r1. The intra-coutt :{|'.||_-|l_'q] seands wirhdraamn as per order of
the Honorable Lahore High Court dated 19-10-2023.The main appeal before ATIR is heard and favorable outcome is
expecied.

The learned DCIR initiated procecdings /s 33(3) and 33(1) of the Sales Tax Aet, 1990 where he imposed penalty of Rs,
1,257,357/~ on account of late filing of sales tax return vide order bearing oo CNoLTUSST/ESC-
16/ Min/ Tandliamwala /2021 /5055 dated 09-09-2021. The RP filed an appeal betone CIR (A) which was heard on 15-10-
2021 in which the learned CIR (A} confirmed the order of DCIR vide order bearing no, 0874 daced 04-03-2022, The
RP being aggricved filed an appeal before Honorable ATIR on 01-04-2022, which 15 pending for hearing,

The learped DOCIR initiated prl:n‘rr:ﬁngs u/% H[|:| of the sales Tax Act, 1990 where he disallorwed ir:||_-.|r.1lr tax of Rz
30,714,593/ - on account of claim in vielation of secton § along with penalty of Rs 1,535,720/~ u/s 33 vide order bearing
o CMNoLTOEal-16/5T /82 18217 dated 20-04-2022, The RP filed an appeal before CIR (A) which was heard on 06-
-2022 in which the learned CIR (A} has set aside the '|}|'|:u;'r_'|;'L:|'|r_|H with the direction that re-assessment of case has oo be
made vide order bearing no 10/ A-Y dared 10-06-2022,

The learned DMCIR finalized the re-assessment proceedings vide order having reference Moo LTO SUnie-27 /8T /7801 /582
dared 15.06.2023 1n which DCIR again dizallowed input tax amountng o Be 24.680,164/- Being aggneved with said
order RP filed an appeal before CIR(A). The CIR (A) made the decision in fovor of RP regarding allowrance of inpur wax
claim of Bs, 18928876/ against the acquisiticn of Pipes of Iron &Firongs while confiemed the learned DCITR decision
regarding the remaiming input tax claim of Rs. 53,751,288/~ The company as well as the tax advisor being confident in
favourable outeome i in peocess of Aling appeal befioee ATIR .

The learned QIR finalized the proceedings by making addition of Re 310,704,739 on account of Expore Rebate and BMR
tax credit impact of the same is Bs 123,703,716/ - Being apgrieved with the nrder, the tax payer filed an appeal before CIR
(A} The commissioner (Appeals) vide order daeed 05-01-2021 delesed the addidon made by the officer inland revenue
{CHR). The department being agereved with the nrder of CIR (A} filed an appeal before ATIR but the same has not been
fixed for hearing, Management is confident of a favourable ourcome i this regard.

The Company has filed a Wit Petidon Mo, 67781/2022 in the Lahore High Court to challenge the validity of Super Tax
imposed by the FBE under Secrion 4C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000, The Honourable Courr has granted interim
relief o the Company o file Income Tax Remorn for the Tax Year 2022 excloding the mx under section 40 of the
Ordinanee; subject o deposit of post dated cheques of the differental amount liable 1w be deposited under section 4C.
However, it has been directed on the request of the Peutoner that the cheques shall be encashed on the dircetion of the
Comrt 0or subject i decision in this arnd connected [retitions,
The said interin relief was challenged by the Commissioner Inland Reveree wide P 3508-172022 hefore Augnast
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). The SCP dispased off the civil petinon, directing the taxpaver o deposit 300% of Super
Tax Liability under protest after adjustment of refunds (f any).

The writ petition was later fiwed for hearing before Honourable Lahore High Coust whom vide its judgement dae June
37._3“23 allovweed the Wit ]'H.'Iil:jl:ll'l ]'mr‘IJi&H:\.' 3 the extent that the First Peowviso oo Divigzion 1IB of Pare-l of the Figst
Schedule ro the Oredinance wag declared o be discriminacory; hence, ultra-vires 0o the constitation whereas rest of prayer
Le, Impositiondlevy of Super tax retrospecavely on the doceirine of past & closed transactons were dismissed
Being aggneved with the above order, cross Intra Court Appeal before Honourable Lahore High court is filed by both
parties Le. Company and FBR which is pending for hearing,
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The learned DCIR initiated proceedings ufs 11(1),/26(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 190 where he imposcd the penalty of R
50,238,011/ ufs 33 on acenunt of bae filing of sales mx reums along with defaol surcharge of Rs 11,537,956/ - ofs
34(1) vide order beating no. 3T/ 14 daved Z7-07-20235. The RP being aggricved has filed an appeal before CIR (A) on 27
I7-2025 aprainst the said order. The CIR {A) confirmed the demand ercated by the DCIR vide order no 2-AN\Y daed 25
192023, Being agericved with the order of CIR (A, the BP filed an appeal belore the honorable ATIR, which is pending
for adjudication. Based on ax advisor's opinion, Company's Management expeeis a favourable owcome of the maner.
The learned DCIR initated proceedings u/fs 11(2) & 11{4A) of the Sales Tax Act, 19 on acoount of non payment of
sales tax payable amounting o Rs ZEZ148/- and sales v withheld payable amounting: w Ks 4428921/ amd also
improscd penalty and defanl surcharge ofs 33(5) & 34 respectively on iL The RP being aggricved with the decision of the
MR filed an appeal before CIR(A) which is pending for hearing. Based on wx sdvisor's opinion, Company's
Management expects a lvourable outcome of the mater.

17.2 Commitmenis

17.2.1

17.22

17.23

Comnmitments in respect of imponts contractod bat oot incorred ar year end amoounted w approximatcly Rs. Nil (2022 Rs
Mil).

The Company has given a bank guarantee with V0% cash margin of Ra 2 million (2022: R 2 million) w the Fxcise and
Tazation Departmnent for tee expore of Kihanol in selation o contingency 28 discossed nonowe 1711,

The Company has corain ljarah Galives which have been elassified as operating lease in the fnancial statements as
trequired by the Islamic Financial Accountng Stndard 2 (1IFAS 2} ssocd by the Insiooe of Chartered - Accountanis

of Pakistan. The amount of ljarah rentals pasd derng tee year has been charged as an expense during the year.
The commitments of fwure payments under operating Iua_‘.c-s.-"lim-.lh linancing and finance lease contracts amd the period

im which these payments will become due are as Tollows:

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Mot kaer than one year A 198,215
Later than one year amd oot lcer than five pears
- 4,198,215
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2023 2022
Capital work-in-progress Rupees Rupees
Deened
il wieatkes ANaA 822 ANAN5 822
Plant and machinery 3,000,740 3,106,740
Others 1,782 Y84 1,782 DB4
55,495,546 55,495 546

Throughout the vear, there has heen no actviey or maovemnent in the Capiial Work in Progress (CWTF) account,

Nate 2023 022
Long term deposits Rupees Rupees
Leposits againse leased assets 257 719 230 123 2300 84
(rthers ied 31,650 BE3 31,375,863
289,409,122 154,606,251
Thess mainly comjprise of secunty margins of Rs, 212 million (2022 Rs, 50 million) deposited against long term finaocing facilities,
2023 Bz
Stores, spare parts and loose tools Rupees Rupees
Htores and spare parts 1,661,364, BET 1249337570
il and lubgicants 34,007,559 33477127
1,735,372,446 1,262,815,007
2023 022
Stock-in-trade Rupees Rupees
Baw marenals 1,944 400, TTH 2 2 430 821
Finished gonds B2 A 5 o0, D W2
5,131,402,809 7,950, 386,723

Trade debs - considered pood

These include amount due from Lotte Akhrar Beverages (Pvt) Limited, an associated company, against the sale of Top Gas amounting
to Bs. 0.7 million (2022 Re 4.30 million) in the normal course of business and 1= over due by less than 180 dayvs. Masximum aggregare
outstanding balance at any time during the vear amounts twe Ks. 11,336,278 (2022 Rs 6,107,261).

Nate 2023 2022
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables Rupees Rupees
Advances o sugar cane growers - swseonred, cowsidera good LBTA6T5,230 1B 41 20T
Ay ANCES By 5\.|.||1E:-|ix'r:\. anid CONEEACETS rr.-.'.".*.-.n.'r.-.l'. :.'.-.-.'.".l'r.'r.'a-.-f._'\w.-.\" 230 -:'-_I"\-| 2_2| | _'.:'|':' 1_;\'.;':.?‘_'_2_” 3
Medvances oo staft - wwsrved, awsired pond:
- agalnst CRpenscs 871024 3,365,132
- against salaries 2 30T9819
MAcdvances against letter of credit 233 0BG, 50 35001, 3249
Pre-payments 27533082 12,531,154
Inland export subsidy 24 133,167,750 133,187,750
Expart support on sugar EER) SEGA91 010 SRO, 491,010
Deposis wath the Depury Regisirar (Judicial), Labose High Cour 201 ZH) By 201 2N B
{mher receivables 234 _"ﬂ::'. '|'..'. [T 234 .':'l.'"-l.:'.:_:-”:'
£,873,082,962 5,708,251,593

This represents unsecured imterest free sdvances wo contractons and suppliers for normal repair and maintenance.

This includes amount receivable from executmves of the Company, amountng to Bs 088 million (2022 R= 083 mallion) respectavely.
Thas includes advances apainst lertes of credit amoundng o Bs 36,08 million,

Thas represents inland export -::||:|.ﬁ.i||:| provided o exporters of sugar in the year 2013 aned 20014 2t the sare of Bs, 1.75 and Rs, 100 pee
ko sugar exported throogh SRC 70200 2-E-HT (Vol-IV) dated Seprember 30, 2013

Thas represents export support on sugar prowided oo exporters during the finaneial year 2007-18 with inland freight support amemnting
to Bs. 553 mullinn ar Bs 10.7 per kg pursuane e Letrer Moo B Noo 7(2)/2002-Expll issued by the Minstry of Commerce under
directions of Government of Pakistan dated Oerober 03, 2017,

This includes interese free Inan receivable from supenor Texule Mills Limited, an associated company, amounting 1o Bs, 1002 million
(2022; Re, 30 million) respectively, The maximuom agrregate amount ootsmnding at any @me during the vear amounes o R, 1002
millicen (2022: Rs. 30 million).
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

.\\.l’.".": m“ mz
M Cash and bank balances Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 2,484,362 14,773,116
Cash at bank - faeed owrremy
- CIITEDT eI er |l.:l-'§.| _’-I".,':'-I-"" 607 681 .| BT
- Sl CEITE 2401 AT 548 22 323042
1,007 508,495 630,004,229
1,009,942 457 44,777,345
24.1 The balances in saving accorints carey mark-up rnging from 18% w0 22.5% per anoum (2022 W% o 13.2% per annum),
Nt 223 2022
25 Sales - net Rupees Rupees
Tsin
Surprar 31,674, THU 548 24 430,130, 367
Erhanaol 2249 504 51 231 414,616
Tirp Gras & wthers 231 3T, T42 685 AT2.6%0,273
32,281,027,839 25,434,241, 256
Encherts
Saggrar 252 1,545,033 290)
Ethanaol 13, 273,074,257 10,560,507 465
14, 818,107,547 10, 54640, 507 469
47,00, 135,386 35,%94,748,725
s
Sales mx (4,809,047,873) (3,604,782,943)
42, 200,087,513 32,209,965, TR2
25.1 These inclede sale i Listee Akhtar Beverages (Pue) Limited, an associated company, of Top Gas amounting o Re 435 million (2022 Rs,
3488 mullion).
252 _I}IZI'IIF th VEAT SLEAT WS exXpOrh ol as per the fuota alloeaned |'_|:.' SHP There was o EXPOTE af sugrar in thi Prl_".'ill'.l;\- year.
253 The amount of Rs, 3.04 billion included in conteace liabilities ar Seprensher 50, 2022 has been tecognized as revenue in 2023 (2022: Rs. 6960
millican).
Nk 2023 2022
26 Cost of sales Rupees Rupecs
Raw material eonsumed A 514,681,442 27,105 081 BEG
Salanes, wages and other benefits 26 G18,347 529 TIAT BT
Diepreciation o TT0,347 388 TRT 665,TTE
Stores and spare parts consumed By BOR, 200 A37 3048 852
Fuel and power 240,524 1a8 235,133,867
Repair and maintenance 3,355,155 FT2ade05
Vehicle running expenses 45 956,675 33 8%, 600
Inswrance 71,146,433 46,415,998
ljarzh renrals 4,196,215 35510076
Chther expenses 33,004,500 31,388,577
33, TES, 330,212 30,235,384, 209
At {Mpewing rhavk
Rezsr maarenal 27h60 430 W21 1,734,154, 5506
- Finished grods 5690, 046, 902 4,522 789 300
41, 748,716,935 3, A%, 328,164
Pegsz ..':v.r."rr; sk
- Raw mareral 21 (1,440 400 TTH) (2,260 439 821
- Finished grods 2t (3,190,942 D31, (5,658,546, W02,
35,617,314, 126 28,556,941,441

26.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Bs. 1028 million (2022
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Nate 023 2022
17 Administrative expenses Rupees Rupees
Salanes, wapes and other benefits 27t 435,574,115 375,247, T
Bent, rates and taes 2462741 9,266,608
Depreciation M 19,752 497 23 KB4, TR
Utilities expenses 4084754 3470520
Printing and stationery 17013975 16,698,125
[nswrance 4,063,909 2,875,587
Postage, telephone and relegrams 10,571,082 9 ka8 301
Repair and maintenance T 468370 3,802 706
Travelling and conveyance 136,300,100 128 870,940
Fubscription, books and penindicals 403 130 12,194,233
Lepal and professional charpes 19433 837 290600, 378
Auditor's remuneration 272 195,200 4,355,300
Entercuinment 21,537 448 19031955
Uther CEPRCISES AT 65T 064 400033, 270
THE M8, 235 083,720,881
27.1 Salanes, wages and other benefirs include B, 40.2 millinn (2022 Bs, 608 million) in respect of staff rerement henefics,
23 2022
172 Auditor's remuneration Rupees HRupees
udin foe A4 B 2060, 100
Half vearly review 1,385 200 1,395 200
13,195,200 4,355,300
Aot 2023 2022
28 Distribution expenses Rupees Rupees
Handling and distobution 193,206,736 104,181,574
Transprrtation 235 858,017 248 TT0, 734
Fugar stacking charpes 40,902,416 47,855,221
Oithers 281 91453357 13019 513
485,264,526 413,833,042

28.1  This includes salaries paid o Excise Department staft present at the Company's premises 1o moaitor the diseributon of Ethanol.

\ N3 2022
1 il
29 Orher income Rupces Rupees
Income fi natsrcial assets
Trroit om saving accounts 33,395,263 3950,230
Income from non-financial assets
Crain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 18z #.313,804 93,083
Foreign exchange gain 244,080,221 47,930,272
Miscellaneous income 220479 6,907 562
Amortzaton of deferred income i B2Z24m 10,4559 335
287,041,015 69,346,782
A3 | e
M Finance cost Rupees Rupees
Muvk-sp bzied Soams fros onsestiosiod ki
- Long term fnances - sewred 184 416,039 245 B1E,690
- Shaort term borrmowings - sered 208 455 G52 1,324 452514
- Mark-up on lease liabilicy 20 R340 26678111
2.442,685,147 1,5%,949,315
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k]|

32

EEN)

£

Long term finances « st l E.H_-.;,,"i."ifll I A 624,285 I
2,875,130 4,624,283
Bank char =} 5615 2632 3001 143
Onther charges 7,329 041 71,630,474
12,944,343 15,531,621
2,458,504,826 1,677,105,219
N 2023 2022
IREU] S
Oher expenscs Rupees Rupees
[Monariions T 15 836 505 12 BA2 527
Wirkers' Profie Participation Fund [F T3 110,006 B6, 355,112
128,946,521 69,217,639

During the vear, the Company has paid donation to Instioute For Policy Reforms situated ar 4 - Shami Road Lahore Cantr, Pakistan in which
Mr. Akbar Khan = a Director, None of other Directors of the Company or their spouses have any tnterest in, or are otheraase associated witl

the recipient of donation

2023 202z
Mt
Taxation Rupees Rupoes
Income tax
- Crrent 122w 321 TROHTO 4060 467,063,454
- Pric peviad (144,688,374 -
646, 288, 0BG 467,068,454
Deferred rax T2 [, 414,807 1 711,351
639,573,270 470,776,805

Tax Charge Reconciliation
A numerical reconeiliztion berween tax expense and the produce of socounting profic multplied by tax rane,

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Accounting Profit 2,149,090, 2946 DEE ARE, 342
Tax at the applicable rate of Z9% plus super s (2022 29%) TH 456,152
Tax for the |_'\-|'i-:|r YEAr 1 44 658 .374)
Tax effect of super tax 853,927
Inadmissible cxpense 4,592 586
Exempt income (238,452)
Oichers 44 552447
Tax Expense 646,288 0BG

Recongilistion berarven tix expense and aceountng profie for the prics year 1 not presented as the lase year provision for current tixation was
based an turnaover tax and final tax under secoon 113 & 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000, rEspeCtny q'|:.'.

Dharing the vear minimum tx is adjusted against the normal mx liabiliee caleulared ar the mre of 29% a5 normal mx labiliey s greater than
minimum tax this vear,

Certain other tax cases noet imvobving material amounts are pending against the Company against which the Company expects favorable
outcomes and, hence, have not been provided for in these accounts,

Earuings per share - basic and dilited

2023 2022
Prostin afrer taxanon H.l'i:.'l:{.- 1,500 217017 B17.711.537
Weighted average number of ordinary shares M of shares 117,706 300 117, 70063000
Basic earnings per share Ruprees 1282 4.40

There 15 no dilution effect un the basic earnings per share as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue as ac 30
September 2023

Nae 2023 2002
Cash and cash equivalents Rupees Rupres
Caszh and bank balances 24 1,009 9492 85T 644777345
Short term borrowings - Running fnance 12 (90,5012, 155) (99, 5412,155)
210,490,702 45 27F I
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Financial risk management

The Company 15 exposed 10 the Frllor ey tisks Froan its wse of financial instrumenes:
1 Credie nsk

2 Liguidiry nsk

3 Marker dsk

This presents informancn abour the Companys exposare to each of the above nsks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and manaping risk, and the Company's management of capiral,

Risk management ramework

The Brard of Directors have overall responsibility for establishment and over-sight of the Company's nsk managemene tramework. The
execulve management team is responsible for developing and monimnng the Company's risk management policies. The team regulardy
meets aml any changes and compliance issues are 'r|.'|1-c|:'r|.:|,| 1oy the Board of Directars thi gy the Audit Comimiateee,

The Company’ risk management policies are established o identfy and analyze the msks faced by the Company, o set appropoate msk
limits and conteals, and o monitor risks and adherence oo limis, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly o neflece
changes in market condinions and the Company's acrivines, The Company, through its raining and management standards and
procedures, mms w0 develop a disciplined and consorucove control environment i which all emplovess understand their roles and
|:-'|:||i|_(.|l,i1|1'|s.

The Company's Andit Committes oversees how managernent monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the sk management framework in relation to the rsks faced by the Company, Asdit Commities
iz assisted in itz oversight role by imernal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of nsk

management controls and |'rr|:-|'x'||u|.‘ve'!-:. the results of which are reported o the Audit Commintes.

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1= the nsk of financial loss o the Company if a customer or counterparty t0 a financial instrument fails to meet its contraciual
rnihligationg, To manage credir risk the Company mainrains peocedures covering: the applicanon for credic appeovals, granting and renewal
ol counterparty limits and momnitoring ol exposures apainst these lmas, As par of these proscesses the financial viakaliry of all

counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed.

The CAPEYIEGE Ardnint of financial assets TEPesents the maximurm credie EX[Os0TE hefope it credit enhancements. The maximum exXpule

tes eredit nisk ar the repornng dare is:

2023 2022
Rupees Hupees
Long term deposits 31,05, 5463 31,375,803
Trade debrs - condadaned good 3843118 18,480,272
Adwvances, deposits and other receivables 1,046,985, 167 1 (b, 5], A5
Bank balances 1,007 508 445 630,004 2309
20K, 027 663 1,726,427,262

Trade debts

Trade debrs ar the balanee sheer dare are classified in Pak Ropees.

2023 2022
Ruprees Rupees
Export - secured - -
Loeal - sarreenored, sonsigerea pood 3,643,118 15,486,272
3,843,118 15,486,272
The aging of local trade receivables at the reporting dite is:
Related Parties Others Total
2023 2023 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees
1 tr 30 days TOBATT 1,057,357 2305534
31 0 90 days - 1,477,544 1,477,564
08,177 3,134,541 3,843,118
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Related Parties Others Total
2022 2022 2022
Rupees Rupees Rupees
1 to 30 days 4,349,171 9278 437 13,627 608
31 1o 900 clays 4 858,604 4 858 604
4,349,111 14,137,101 18,486,272

Trade debts comprise solely of local customers, including Lotte Akhtar Beverages (Pvt)) Limited, an associated company. These include
companies with very good credit history with the Company and are regular in their payments. The management continuously monitors the
repayment capacity and intention of their debtors and extends the credit periods to their customers according to their credit history,
Furthermore, the Company has recovered major portion of its trade debts subsequent to the vear. Resultantly, no impairment allowance
was recorded.

Bank balances

Credit nsk 15 considered minimal since the counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit ratng
agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing,

management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Following are the credit

ratings of counterparties with external eredit ratings:

Rating Rating 2023 2022
Shortterm  Long term Agency Rupees Rupees

Al-Baraka Bank A A+ PACRA 535,057 5350059
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 229,666,443 5,440,227
Askart Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA T48519 L31,016,313
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ Ad+ PACRA 939,112 11247
Dubai Iskamic Bank Alt AA JER-VIS B42 (162 2479 524
Faysal Bank Limired Al+ AN PACRA 2237037 157049
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCRVIS 8,480 844 4 444 574
MCRB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA M,757,052 170,909,974
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCR-VIS 22572513 2595152
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA JCR-VIS 3,446,124 2871 364
Samba Bank Limited A-1 AA JCR-VIs 1,541,780 385,221
Sindh Bank Limited A At JCR-VIS 357023 121 144 802
Soner Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 2037473 1,527,692
Summir Bank Limited Suspended JCR-VIS i i
The Bank Of Khyher A At JCR-VIS 1,303,579 T4, 768
The Bank of Punjab Alt Ad+ PACRA Tl T4 262,179
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VI8 618,617,709 183,423,266

1,007,508,495 630,004,229
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353 Liguidity risk

354

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, The Company’s approach to
managing lguidity is 1o ensere, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its labilides when due, under both
normal and steessed conditions. For this purprse, the Company has sufficient running finance facilitics available from various commercial
banks to meet its liquidity requirements. Further, louidiey position of the Company is cosely monitored through budgets, cash flow

prosjections and comparisen with sctuad results by the Board,

. ity ric

Follewing are the contractual mannties of the financial labilities, including estimated interest payments:

Contraciual Less than one One to five More than five
Carrying Amount cash flows year years years
September 30, 2023
Long rerm finanges - sowred 571,654,543 B2 257 045 H02.237 (45
Lease liabilities 503,673,841 618372912 251 504,232 366,868,680
Shose rerm bossowings-seewred H433218 407 B A 21H AT B AN 2B 40T
Trade and other pavables 2ETIETIALS 29573413
Mark-up geerued 359291779 3592 T 3549 401 779 -
12147 413,983 12,292,693,556 11,925,824 876 366,868,680 -
Carrying Amount Contractual Less than one One 1o five More than five
cash flows ¥eidr years yCars
September 30, 2022
Long term finances - sored 1 4600099 738 1,974 280 623 1,205 851 974 T6E 437 649
Lease liabilines 242,250,362 255,816,162 252,979,243 2,436,919
Short verm borrowings-seoered G007 040,575 G007 044,575 0507 (40 575
Teade and other pavahles 3,079 5982660 079598, 260 J079, 598, Mob
Mark-up scerued 431,127.753 431,127 753 431,127 753 g
15,210,116,694 15,737 472,379 14,%66,597,811 771,274,568 -

The contractual cash Aows relating to the above financial liabilites have been determined on the basis of mark-up rates effective as at
September 30, 2023, The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial starements.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that {h::n:_wr; in markes }'ll'i[i_'.\'. such as Fnrg-igﬁ rxn:h:mg:' rates, inferest rates and n||.|irj.' prin::':e will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The ohjective of marker risk management is to manage and coneml
market risk exposures within accepiable parameters, while optimizing return, Market rsk comprises of currency risk, inerest rate risk and

other price rsk.

35.4.1 Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is 4 mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchases
and bank balances are denominared and the respective funcdonal currency of the Company. The functional currency of the

Company 15 Pak Kupee. The currency in which these transactions are primarly denominated is US Dollars,
Expossre to currency rick

There were no financial assets or financial Dahilities at year end in foreign currencies which are subject to currency risk exposure.
Since the maximum amount ExpH sed to curreney sk is Nil (2022 Wi, any adverse [/ favorable movement in the functicnal

currency with respect to US dellar will not have any material impact en the eperatonal resalts,
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35.4.2 Tnterest rate risk
Interese rare risk is the risk thar the fair values or fuvare cash lows of Gnancial instruments will Aucteare due to changes in market
interest eates, Significant interest rate risk cxposures are primearily managed by a mix of boreowings at varable interest rares, At the

reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instroments was as follows:

2023 2z 2023 2022
Effective rate Carrying amount
----- Percentage ----- = --e---a- Rupees -------
- Financial assets
Fived rate instruments
Bank balances - ey s LH%0 to 22, 5% 10f% e 13.2% BT 5dH 22323042
2023 | 2023 2022
Effective rate Carrying amount
Financial liabilities ----- Percentage - - - - - -------- Rupees -------
Floating rate instriment
Long term fnances - sered S0P - 25.76%s 500%0 o 18, 74% 571,654,543 1,400,059 7 38
Lease lizbility 2137 - 28.49% - 15,5000 505,675,541 242 250,362
Short term borrowings - s 18.51% - 27.01% 10L28%% - 19,16% 2,125,718 407 4,961 428573
% i : G o - 1P/ Fo-10P0 207 1 0K R
Esport refinance facility - rered 12.78% - 25.67% 10.54%-19.01% 0,307 500,000 5,035,612,002

The Company does not account for any fixed rare financial assets and labilices at fair valoe through profic or loss. Therefore, a

change in interest ranes ar the reporting dae would not affect profic or loss aceount.

bl i b R o :

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have inereased ( (deereased) profit or loss for the year by

the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all nther variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant,

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Effect on profir - Ingrease 32004588 (363,637, THT
Effect on profit - Decrease (32,010,458 (66,637,787

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessaily indicative of the effects on profic / (loss) for the year and assets [/ liabilities of
the Company.

Interest rate risk management
The Company manages interest rare risk through risk management straregies where significant changes in gap posidon can be
adjusred, The short rerm borrowings and loans & advances to the Company have vanable rare pricing that is mostly dependent on
KIBOR s indicated in tespective notes,

35.4.3 Other price risk

Ovther price risk is the risk thar the fair value or fure cash fows of a financial instrument will flucrare because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The Company believes that it is not exposed to
other price risk,
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36 Capital management

The Board's policy ds to maintain an efficient capital base 5o as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and ro sustain the
future development of its business. The Board of Ditectors monitor the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Direcrors also mondtor the level of dividends wo ordinary sharcholders,
The Company's objecrives when managing capiral are:

|'iJ' tix HQ.[L‘guﬂ]’ll the f‘.m!l][‘.*)ﬂg.'s a]:ﬂil:. b0 COnnee a5 a guing conceti, s0 that it can continue Lo |'lrlnjcl{.' returns for shareholders and

benefits for other stakeholders, and

i) o provide an adequate return to shareholders
The Company manages its capital strucure in the context of economic condinons and the risk characrerisoes of the undeslving assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for cxample, adjust the amount of dividends paid te sharcholders, issue
new shares, or sell assets o reduee debt. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debe-w-equity rado - caloulated as o rago of

2023 2z
Rupees Rupees
Dyeht 1I175,330), 354 1,703,172, 345
Fequiry 12,5398,150,652 11,066,067 407
Total 13,673,467,056  12,769,239,755
Gearing ratio 8% 13%
The Company is less geared as compared to last year.
361 Accounting classification and Fair values
September 30, 2023 Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
Fai Ar Amortized
though Profitar | it VAlE o Total Level1 Level2 Level 3
through OCI Cost
Loss
Financial assets
Long term deposits - 31,689 883 31,689,883
Trade debrs - consieered good 5118 3,843,118
\dvances, deposis, prepayments Lidogse 167 1,0d46,986,167
& other receivahles
Cash and bank balances 1009992 857 1,009,992 857
- : 2092512025 20092,512,025 - X 3
Financial liabiliries
Long term finances - semred 571,654,543 571,654,543
Lease liahilities S3675, 841 503,675,841
Shoet term borvowings - ! BANIZIEANT  8,433,218,407
Trade and other payables 23T05TIAIY 0 2270573413
Mark-up accrued 3a4 201,79 359,201,779
- . 12,147, 413,983 12,147,413,983 L : -

long term debt to equity,

1 o 3
The debr-to-equity ratios as ar a0 Seprember are as follows;
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September 3, 2022 Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value .
through Profit or St At fmpatine Tatal Levell Level2 Lewel 3
e through OCI st
Financial assets
Lo term deposits - - 31375803 31,375,863
Trade delsts - mnsidered g - - 16486272 18,486,272
Advances, deposits, prepayments 1L 560898 1,046,560,898
& other receivables
Casl & bank balances = x 44,777 345 644,777,345

. e 1,741, 200,376 1,741,200,378 E : -

Financial liabilitics

Long term finances - sevred - - 1,460,099, 738 1, 460,099,738
Lease habalities 242 250,362 242,250,362
Short term borromings - svred 0997 040 575 9,997,044],5?5
Trade and other payables - s FOTUAUE 200 3,079,598, 266
Mark-up accroed ) . 431,127,753 431,127,753

- - 15,210,116,6% 15,210, 116,694 = - =

The abowe table presents assets and kabihoies carned at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follons:

Level 1 - Cruoted prices (unadjusted) in acove markets for identdcal assets or liabilines
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thar are observable for the asset or lahality, erther divecely (Le. as prices) or
indirectly (Le. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable matket daea.
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37.8  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

37.8.1 Revenues

Total revenue for reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Consolidared revenue

37.8.2 Profit or loss before tax and other expenses

Total profit for reportable segments

Un-allocated corporate expenses
- Chtlher encheasier
- Ohtlrer ingaamre
Tercaion
Consolidared profie afier rax

37.8.3 Assers

Total assets tor reportable segments
Elimination of inter-segment assers

Consolidated assets

37.8.4 Liabilities
Total liabilities for reporrable segments
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities

Consolidated liabilites

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 2022
Bupees Rupees
42 290,087,513 32,299 965,742
42,290,087,513 32,299,965,782
1,990,995,802 YEE,359,199
(128,946,521) (69,217 ,639)

287,041,015
(639,873,279)

(9,346,782
(470,776,805)

1,509,217,017 517,711,537
30,807,275,254 31,898 486,705
30,807,275,254 31,808,486,705
18,209,138 602 20,832,419,208
18,209,138,602 20,832,419,298
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3 Capacity and production

Sugar plant

Crushing capacity (Metric wons)

based on 125 davs - (Season 2022-20235)
Sugar produced (Metric fons)

Recovery rato

Sugar plant

Crushing capacity (Meteic tons)

based on 125 days - {Season 2021-2022)
Sugar produced (Metric tons)

Reivery eatio

Rated capacity {Litees)
Actual producten (Litres)
Ethanol - Distillery plamt IT

Rated capagity (Litres)

Actual producticn (Litres)

Top Gas - Carbon diocde plant

Rated capacity (Metric mns)
Agtual producnon (Metric tons)

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023
Unit [ Unie IT Unie I11 Tatal
1,562,500 2,000,000 2,500,000 462, 500
o1, 299 150,516 112,848 333,663
T.T6% B.43%% 2.73% BG4
2022
Unit I Unie IT Unie ITI Total
1,562 500 2 0800 0000k 2 500k (KD (432, 5000
a7in2 114, BiHE 154,083 356,613
5.32% L 92%, U e 9.22%
2023 2022

Based on 330 days

41250000
MLETIO00

41,250,000

35,823,750

46, 200000 A, 2R
44,481,538 38,152,500
2023 2022
Based on 300 days
[-l-,-l-l,ll,] 14,400
5,308 6,136

381 Redoced capacity wilizanon s due o the less availability of sugarcane at the sart and end of crushing scason, which resulted in the

Cperations of the company below the crushing capaciry,

3% Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amounts charged in the fnancial srarements for the yvear

Drirectors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

Managerial femunetation
Medical allowance
House remt allowance
Staff retirement benefits

Mumber of persons

Managerial remuneration
Medical allovwance
House rent allowranee
Staff rerirement benelits

MNumber of persons

for remuneraton, including all beaefits o the Chiet Execurve,

2023
Chief Exccutive Directors Executives
e ——— Rupees se=seemceemaree e -
24 B0 Th,176,959
- ZARD O 3,490,336
- 0920000 23479822
300000 1,351,051
- 10,3400, (WD 114,498,188
1 2 42
2022
Chief Executive Diirectors Executives
T —— R_-u-pggg ......................
Za4 SO0 (423,557
- 2 AB0,000 17,914,
- 0,920,000 26,760,952
- 3100000 0,573,881
- 40, 300,000 124,676,911
1 2 37

391 The Chief Execorive Officer, Direcrores and Execunives are provided with free use of Company mainmained cars

3.2 Mo rl"ll,'l;_'['irIH fee waz paid to Directors l;:II.II'IIIé_r\I the year (2022 Nil)

39.3 Execudves are emplovees whose basic salanes exceed Rs. 1.2 million in a financial vear,
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

40 Number of employees 2023 2022
Numbet Number
The average and total number of employees are as follows:
Total employees
Averape number of employees during the vear 1,765 1,851
Total number of emplovees as ar 30 Seprember 1,775 1,795
Factory employees
Awerage number of employees during the year | 68T 1,754
Total number of employees as at 30 September 1677 1,697
41 Transactions with related parties
The related parties comprise direcrors of the Company, key employees, associated undertakings and holding company. Details of
transactions with relaced parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as
frallovars:
: ; 2023 2022
Name of party Relationship Nature of Transactions
Rupees Rupees
Lotte Akhtar Beverages Common Sale of Top Gas 43495117 MATTRT
(Pvt.) Limited directorship Receipts against sale of Top Gas 47,139,110 33,890,672
The Institute for Policy Comiman Doration 13,836,505 12 862,527
Reforms directorship
Superor Textile Mills Common Advances provided Th, 288,000 30000,000
Limited directorship Advances received 5,000,000
Ms. Rasheeda Begum Directuor Guest house rent expense 4,800,000 4 800,000
41 Events after the statement of financial position date
There are a0 subsequent events occurnng after the statement of financial position date that will aftect these financial statements,
43 Date of authorization for issue December 29, 2023
These financial statements were authorized for issue on December 29, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the Company,
44 General
441 Figutes have been roundad off to the nearesr Rupee.
4.2 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and deseriptions amended, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison and better
presentation.
Chief Financial Officer Chief Execitive Director
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Proxy Form
Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd.

35" Annual General Meeting

Falio Mo.f/CDC Afc No.

I/\We of

in the district of being a member/members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd
halding shares of Rs.10 each, hereby appoint Mr./Ms.

of a member of the Company, vide Registered Falio/COC Afe
Mo, or failing him / her, as my/our proxy to vote

for mefus and on my/four behalf at the 35" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be hold at Marina

Event Complex 333-AA off Raiwind Road, Lahore on Saturday Jlanuary 20, 2024 at 10:00 am and at any adjournment

thereof or of any ballot to be taken in consequence thereof,

Signed this day of January, 2024
Witnesses:
1. Signature:

Mame:

CHIC:

Address:

Affix Revenue
Stamp of Rupees
Five
Signature by Member(s)

2. Signature:

Mame:

CNIC:

Address:
Mote:

All proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not less than forty eight
{48) hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and
witnessed as required.
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